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CTC Communications Profile

CTC Communications is a facilities-based telecommunications carrier with cor-
porate offices in Waltham, Massachusetts. CTC provides medium- and larger-
sized businesses with an integrated package of communications services,
including local, long distance, high-speed data services, Internet services and a Serving Medium and

portfolio of hosting solutions. Larger Businesses for
aver 20 Years

CTC delivers these services via the Company’s own network, branded the
PowerPathsM Network. This Cisco Powered, next-generation network which
allows customers to combine multiple services over a single, high-speed,
high-bandwidth connection is available to businesses throughout the
Northeast and Mid-Atlantic states. CTC’s PowerPathSM Network serves as a
complete replacement to the traditiona! networks that phone companies
have used for over 100 years. Customers are choosing CTC's PowerPaths™
Network for improved network performance, future growth capabilities and
savings on their telecommunications expenses. :

For over 20 years CTC has been providing cost-effective, competitive com-
munication solutions backed by an exceptional account management
program. The success of CTC's account management philosophy can be
measured by customers selecting integrated packages that average two to
three services and by our industry-leading retention rates. Qur philosophy of
placing customers first and providing customer service from local branch
offices has created a responsive and personal approach to managing the
needs of our sophisticated customer base.

CTC operates in the richest telecom corridor in the world, Boston to
Washington D.C., and is ideally situated to maintain and grow its leadership
position in the telecommunications industry.

Financial & Operating Highlights

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2001

- 2001 Revenue Growth of 39% over Year 2000

— Account Base of Over 15,000 Medium- and Larger-Sized Business
Customers Representing More than 60,000 Locations

— More Than 5,300 Customer Locations on PowerPathsM Network

— More Than $450,000 of Annualized Revenue per Employee

— Approximately $110,000 of Annualized SG&A per Employee

- 589,000 Access Lines in Service

— Activation of Local Dial Tone Services on PowerPathS™ Network
in Four Markets

- Amended Bank Facility Covenants

- Restructured and New Vendor Financing Arranged
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Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

In 2001 we continued our growth, realized
record operating results, expanded our

39% Annual
Revenue Growth

Over 5,300 customer
locations on the
PowerPathSM Network

advanced technology and made substantial |
improvements in productivity.

T0 OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

Itis clear from the CTC Communications Group record of accomplishment in
20071 that CTC has established itself as a highly innovative and credible
telecommunications company. In a demanding year that experienced a
national recession, the inability of a number of our significant competitors to
remain in business, and a national tragedy on September 11, our Company
and its employees reacted in a positive way with a renewed sense of com-
mitment and a focus on the right things to meet the challenges of 2001.

| am proud to report that despite the adverse economic climate in 2001, CTC
moved solidly ahead in executing its business plan through the implementa-
tion and expansion of what will prove to be the cornerstone of our success,
the CTC state-of-the-art packet switched PowerPathsM Network. In 2001 we
confirmed the reliability and adaptabitity of this recent innovation in telecom-
munications technology. At the same time, we expanded our customer base
to over 15,000 medium- and larger-sized business customers and achieved
record revenues of $299 million, a 39% increase over the prior year. This rep-
resents the sixteenth consecutive quarter of increased revenues.

We have demonstrated that our PowerPathSM Network is a superior alterna-
tive to the circuit switch technology presently used by our competitors. Our
network is significantly less expensive 1o build and operate and it enables
converged voice, data and Internet services over a single network
connection, through which our customers realize significant savings on their
monthly network expenses. We believe that this achievement clearly estab-
lishes the superiority of packet switching over the circuit switched architecture
that the telecommunications industry has relied upon for voice services
throughout its entire history. We believe the economics and functionality of
packet switching is so compelling that major carriers in the industry have
begun to transition to packet architecture, despite the industry's multi-billion
dollar investment in circuit-based equipment. Rather than being in the posi-
tion of other telecommunications carriers that will face challenges and
expenses associated with retrofitting yesterday’s technology to today's pos-
sibilities, CTC has foregone the old technology entirely.

The interface of our packet-based PowerPathsM Network with the public
switched telephone network (PSTN) enables our customers to place and
receive local and long distance voice calls to and from any customer served
by any carrier in the world. Local voice is the most widely used telecom serv-
ice and represents 50-60 percent of the total telecom expenditures by our
target customers. By adding local dial tone to our suite of PowerPathsM
products CTC can now achieve the full benefit of our network investment.

Bandwidth demand and the economics of bandwidth delivery are essential
drivers of an advanced telecommunication infrastructure based upon optical
networking technology. Optical fiber offers considerable capacity and cost
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advantages over other data transport. We believe our competitive position was further strengthened during 2001
as we commenced our local fiber initiative, lighting local fiber in Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Maine and
Rhode Island. By owning and operating this fiber, which has been designed and engineered to mesh with our long
haul fiber network, we are extending our PowerPathsM Network reach to the local phone company switching
offices that are in close proximity to both our customers and prospects. From there, broadband connectivity to the
customer is achieved utilizing last mile facilities typically leased from the ILEC. This fiber initiative will result in
meaningful network cost savings in 2002 through savings achieved by the ability to disconnect the vast majority
of leased inter-office facilities from other carriers. Where CTC's local fiber initiative is in place and the dependency
on the “middle mile” facilities has been reduced, we have experienced improved network quality, reliability, and
a decrease in on-net provisioning time.

In 2001, CTC opened its new Advanced Technology Center (ATC) in Waltham, Massachusetts. It was designed to
grow the portfolio of new services available to our medium and larger business customers. Today, it is being used
to facilitate CTC customer outsourcing of mission critical equipment and applications. Each customer on our
PowerPathSM Network is virtually collocated in the ATC through CTC's fiber network extended back to CTC's sec-
ond PowerPathsM SuperNode, housed within the ATC. The ATC and our original SuperNode located in Springfield,
Massachusetts are both major switching and transmission centers that include high-speed packet switches,
softswitch voice processors, fiber transmission hubbing and network routing devices. CTC's SuperNode design
allows us to provide customers with a higher level of service quality, reliability and responsiveness in a more cost
efficient environment. The Advanced Technology Center currently offers customer hosting solutions that include
shared and dedicated web hosting, web site design services, Internet/VWAN collocation services and data center
storage networking services. In 2002, we plan to further extend our portfolio of services to include various data
storage options for our customers.

During 2001, we continued to give our highest priority to customer care. Qur ability to retain and acquire new
customers from established telecom providers reflects the Company's continual commitment to customer care
through highly motivated and dedicated local account teams. CTC has continued the development of information
systems designed to specifically meet customer needs and enable our account teams to anticipate customer
concerns and respond quickly, twenty four hours a day, seven days a week.

At December 31, 2001 we were servicing over 15,000 customers at more than 60,000 locations. Converged serv-
ices were delivered over our PowerPathsM Network to 5,300 of these locations, representing approximately 14%
of our 589,000 access lines and equivalent circuits (ALEs).

With the remaining 86% of our business still on our resale platform at December 31, 2001, our margins were
20% of revenues in the December quarter. This was not unexpected at this stage of Company development. We
originally tock the interim step of full service resale, despite low resale margins, while we were building our
packet-based network in order to avoid creating a legacy of circuit-switching equipment at a considerable capital
cost which would have interfered with our ability to achieve maximum flexibility through our packet architecture.
At the same time, we were also building an extensive customer base for migration to our network. We were will-
ing to sacrifice some prcfitability in the short term to achieve significantly greater profitability in the long run.

We expect our margins to average above 30% in full-year 2002, some 50% higher than the 20% posted in the
December 20071 quarter as we migrate additional customers from our resale platform to our network, add new
customers directly to our network, offer additional services to our existing customers, and achieve the
economies of the local fiber initiative which will eliminate the need for a number of costly leased circuits. We will
accomplish these objectives while continuing to closely monitor capital and operating expenses.

We would like to thank our shareholders and employees, who have given the Company and its management their
full support during the years the Company has been engaged in the execution of its strategy. We intend to fully
justify your support by making every effort to enhance shareholder value by meeting the objectives we have
established for 2002.

Robert J. Fabbricatore
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

April 19, 2002




“We own a collection of upscale
hotels that reflects the culture of
their locations. Our customers expect
a lot from us, and we deliver. It’s
refreshing to work with people that
also have a culture of quality. CTC
gives us 5-star service.”

Sonesta Hatels International

99% Monthly Customer
Retention Rate

o C1lO Annual keport 20UL

Customer Service

Since our inception in 1981, CTC has prided itself on providing old-fashioned
custorner care. One of our greatest strengths is the ability to provide service
that makes sense for both the customer and CTC.

Superior customer care starts with our service delivery model. We study
each customer’s business, identifying current communication problems and
proposing a course of action. We also educate the customer on available
technologies and explain how these technologies can help make their busi-
ness more effective, efficient and competitive. Next, we help the customer
select and implement those technology options that optimize their network’s
functional and/or financial efficiency.

Once the customer signs on for our services, our relationship has just begun.
As part of our ongoing account management process, we first establish a
single point of contact for the customer. This person calls the customer at
least once a month to review progress on any projects, and visits once a
quarter to review the network and analyze changes in the customer’'s busi-
ness needs. In the end, our customer care program enables us not only to
meet the needs of the customer, but also to exceed them.

Focused on the Customer
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TEAMWORK

Role: Responsible as the first line of
service and support for customers. Works
closely with the A.E. in ongoing account

management functions.

“We see ourselves as the eyes and ears of CTC. As an account executive
and network coordinator, we meet with each client on a regular basis.
Our customers know us as people, not just as voices on the other end
of the phone.

We can’t imagine working any other way. This approach has also
allowed us to get valuable customer input, which CTC uses in develop-
ing its products and services. After all, who knows customers’ commu-
nications needs better than the customers themselves?

But our commitment to customer care would be a burden if it weren’t
cost-effective. That’s where our technical and operating efficiencies
come in to play. We have systems in place that allow us to deliver supe-
rior customer service efficiently”

Focused on the Customer
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Account Executive

Role: Responsible for acquisition of new
business and revenue growth within their

existing account base. Serves as the team

TEANWORK

leader in ongoing management of accounts.
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PowerPaths* Network

CTC is dedicated to designing and developing a replacement technology for
today's circuit-switch communications networks. The PowerPathsM Network
leverages technology from industry leaders such as Cisco Systems and
Telcordia Technologies. Its packet-based architecture allows for true conver-
gence of voice, data, video and internet applications onto a single broadband
connection delivered to the customer location.. This next-generation network
platform is perfectly suited for the needs of today's business customer, offer-
ing an integrated, scalable and reliable alternative to legacy incumbent net-
works at a significant cost savings.

Faster, Cheaper, Better

Our PowerPathSM Network enables customers to consolidate their voice, data, internet and
video services on a single high-speed packet connection at their location,

Location A Location B
Users Users
Phone System Phone System
Users Broadband Broadband Users

Integrated Integrated
Video Cisco |AD  Access Access  Cisco IAD Video
Data Users S Data Users
Switch/Router p-arir) PowerPaths® /i, s Switch/Router
Internet Users Hubs Network Hubs Internet Users
IP+ATM over Fiber
Cisco Telecordia Cisco
a vs| |Softswitches| |6 y

Frame Relay Internet with . .
with NNI Capabilty BGP-4 Routing \) (’-”/”;;;\) Local Phone Co's

The interface of our packet-based network with the public switched telephone network (PSTN),
enables our customers to place and receive vaice calls to and from any customer served by any
carrier in the world.

THE TECHNOLOGY BEHIND THE NETWORK

The PowerPathsM Network combines the power and resiliency of fiber optic
transport systems with the flexibility and reliability of packet-routing tech-
nigues to deliver a robust networking package to our customers. Bandwidth
needs can be scaled from a single T-1 connection to multimegabit services
such as DS-3 (45 Mbps) or OC-n (155-622 Mbps).

CTC owns and operates its fiber optic network and has minimized the reliance
on other providers for backbone services. This allows the company to scale its
services based on the needs of its customers and the growth of network traf-
fic minimizing intervals and coordination with other vendors. The standards-
based SONET architecture that CTC has deployed is the most dependable and
reliable network transport available today, and the Dense Wave Division
Multiplexing (DWDM) equipment the company has installed provides state-of-
the-art services and tremendous scalability.

On that solid foundation, CTC has put in place packet-based technology using
Internet Protocol (IP) and softswitches that dramatically reduce costs and
allow the company to operate all its traffic over one cohesive network system
rather than multiple platforms. This efficient operation and lower capital invest-
ment provides CTC customers with access to network services at a significant
saving over their current costs.

PowerPathSM Network saves
customers 10-40% on their
telecommunication costs

“Partnering with CTC has directly
resulted in improved communications
and data efficiencies at CCBT which
has positively and significantly
improved our bottom line.”

CCBT Financial Companies




“CTC is aware of problems before
we are, and they let us know

right away that they are working to
resolve them. With CTC, we’re
paying less than before. Plus, we’re
getting better performance and

a more dynamic solution.”

AM!I Leasing

InteliVIEWSM is an
Industry Leading On-line
Account Management Tool

(=] Ll Aldlllldal RCPOLL 4UUL

Products & Services

CTC's portfolio of products and services offers a variety of broadband solu-
tions to medium and larger businesses. Our customers benefit from
increased efficiency and additional cost savings by utilizing these services
over our PowerPathSM Network.

LOCAL AND LONG DISTANCE

CTC’s voice service can accommodate business customers’ growing com-
munications requirements. From local service to competitive long distance
plans, our voice solutions are designed to address the complete needs of
advanced business applications.

Focused on Technology

o T e

Senior Network Engineer

Role: Testing and certification of all CTC
services. Ensure that all products and
services on our Power PathSM Network are
scalable, available and reliable.

“Our network gives us a considerable advantage over other providers of
local phone services. Existing circuit-switch networks have had the
same basic voice technology in place for over 100 years, which can only
handle a fixed amount of capacity for each voice line.

CTC’s packet-based PowerPathSM Network is a 100% replacement for
today's legacy voice, data and hybrid networks. In a packet-switched
environment, there is no single dedicated circuit. Plus, we enjoy supe-
rior network utilization along with the ability to transmit more informa-
tion (both voice and data) at a lower cost. And because we have spent
months testing the technology behind our services, CTC achieves the
highest level of quality for our customers.”

IntelliVIEWS®

IntelliVIEWSM, our exclusive Web-based cost management tool, gives cus-
tomers more control over their telecommunications expenses. Besides pro-
viding online access to their account team, IntelliVIEWSM allows customers
to search and sort their phone bill online. Customers can also conduct cus-
tomized queries to generate detailed reports, which they can choose to
receive on a daily, weekly or monthly basis. These reports include a break-
down of all recurring charges, a line usage summary, most frequently called
numbers, long calls and most expensive calls. With all this information at
their fingertips, customers can monitor fraud and abusive phone activity
before it becomes a problem.

INTERNET

CTC delivers redundant business-class Internet service that can accommo-
date access speeds from 64 Kbps to 45 Mbps. We also offer iMail, a Web-
based email solution designed specifically for corporate users. IMail
supports current Internet security standards and provides additional virus
protection through inbound and outbound scanning.
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DATA METWORKING

For over 20 years CTC has provided the mid-to-large business marketplace with data networking support. We
design, manage and implement complete data solutions that support business customers with their data trans-
mission requirements. Qur data services range from 56 Kbps up to 45 Mbps. In addition, we recently began offer-
ing an IMA (Inverse Multiplexing over ATM) solution to address applications requiring 2-10 Mbps.

ADVANCED TECHNOLRGY CENTER {ATC)

In June 2001, CTC completed its 50,000-sguare-foot ATC, a carrier-class facility that operates 24 hours a day,
seven days a week. Services available at the Waltham ATC include Web hosting, collocation service and dedi-
cated server hosting, as well as managed services such as network management, managed storage, managed
security, applications hosting and professional engineering services. CTC will provide these services through a
combination of in-house expertise and alliances with portal partners.

Over 8,000 Miles of Fiber from Maine to Virginia

All of CTC’s on-net products and services are made available via the Company's PowerPath$™ Network.

¢
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Annualized Revenue
per Employee averages
$450,000
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CTC People

The success of CTC is dependent on the success of each of our employees.
That's why we’ve cultivated an environment conducive to ongoing learning.
Training curriculums, technical certification programs, extensive e-learning
capabilities: These all help us foster learning on every level. But learning
also takes place in other ways. Qur PowerPaths™M Network is one of the
most innovative communications networks in the world. As a result, engi-
neers and technical operations personnel work in a stimulating environment
that provides new challenges every day.

It's also worth noting CTC’s compensation plan, a unigue approach to moti-
vating our employees. Many companies simply reward employees for
acquiring new customers. We go a step beyond by rewarding everyone in
the field from network coordinator to vice president based on customer
retention and growth.

Focused on CTC Employees

Senad Grospt

V.P, Human Resources

Role: Ensure CTC attracts the highest
qualified candidates. Provide the training

and tools which enable CTC employees to

perform their best.

“We provide our employees with the necessary knowledge and tools to
respond to the needs of a sophisticated customer base. CTC University
is a great example of our commitment to employee growth. This program,
which encourages knowledge transfer and development, has boosted
productivity and efficiency throughout CTC. In fact, it’s helped us build
a world-class engineering team, a major reason for our leadership posi-
tion in voice and data networking.”

|
I
|
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PART 1

GENERAL
At the Annual Meeting of our Board of Directors held on July 27, 2000, we changed our fiscal year from a twelve
month period ending March 31 of each year to a twelve month period ending December 31 of each year.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

QVERVIEW

We are a growing single-source provider of voice, data and internet communications services, (an integrated
communications provider, or ICP) with 18 years of marketing, sales and service experience. We predominantly
target medium and larger-sized business customers who seek greater capacity for voice and data traffic. We
are a single provider for their telecommunications requirements and we offer improved levels of service.

We became an integrated communications provider in January 1998. Prior to that, we were the largest inde-
pendent sales agent for NYNEX Corp. and then Bell Atlantic (now Verizon), based on agency revenues meas-
urements. At the end of 1997, before withdrawing from the Verizon agency program, we were managing rela-
tionships for approximately 7,000 customers, representing over 280,000 local access lines and over $200 mil-
lion in annual local telecommunications spending. As of December 31, 2001, we were serving over 15,000 cus-
tomers and had 589,000 access lines and equivalent circuits, or ALEs. ALEs are the total number of voice cir-
cuits and equivalent data circuits we have in service. Voice circuits are the actual number of voice circuits pur-
chased by cur customers. Equivalent data circuits represent the data transmission capacity purchased by our
customers divided by 64 kilobits per second, which is the capacity necessary to carry one voice circuit.

As of December 31, 2001, our large, experienced sales force consists of 173 account executives supported by
174 network coordinators. Qur sales force is located close to our customers in 26 sales and service offices
principally in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic states.

We currently operate our own state-of-the-art network facilities to carry telecommunications traffic. This
PowerPath®™ Network uses packet-switching, a technology that transmits data in discrete packages and uses
Internet protacol (IP), which is a method that allows computers with different architectures and operating sys-
tems to communicate over the Internet, and asynchronous transfer mode, or ATM, architecture. This permits
the network to transmit multiple types of media, such as voice, data, Internet access and video with various
levels of Quality of Service, or QOS. The first phase of our network became operational for full production
mode in January 2000. We interconnect our facilities over 8,000 fiber route miles on our own fiber, through
fiber optic cable strands acquired aver a 20-year indefeasible right of use, or IRU, from Williams
Communications, and from other regional and metro fiber carriers. We have selected Cisco to provide the
Wavelength Digital Multiplexing (WDM) and SONET technology to activate or light up the fiber and complete
what we believe is a highly competitive, scalable and secure fiber transport infrastructure. Cisco has reviewed
and certified our network design and has designated our network as a Cisco Powered Network. We currently
utilize a combination of both leased and company-owned fiber facilities.

fn September 1999, we initiated commercial service and as of December 31, 2001 we were servicing more
than 5,300 customer locations with our PowerPaths™ Network across the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic states. In
December 2000, we announced completion of a successful Class-4/5 pilot phase using a softswitch from
Telcordia Technologies. The softswitch technology integrated with our PowerPath®™ Network allows us to
deliver both local and long distance voice services using a Voice over IP (VolP) packet based network. In 2001,
the Company also introduced a suite of Hosting Solutions. These E-business and business continuity
(continuous systems uptime) services consist of web hosting, Internet/VWWAN collocation and Data Center
Storage Networking.

Qur Services

Local Telephone Services. We offer connections between our customers’ telecommunications equipment and
the locat telephone network which we lease from incumbent phone companies in most instances. For large
customers or customers with specific requirements, we integrate their private systems with analog or digital
connections. We also provide all associated call processing features as well as continuously connected private
lines for voice interconnectivity between separate facilities. We are now actively engaged in activating local dial
tone services using the Company's PowerPath™ Network through the use of softswitch technology developed




by Telcordia Technologies. We will continue to rollout local dial tone services market by market throughout
2002 as an addition to our existing converged product portfolio. We also offer local telephone services through
resale of the incumbent local exchange carrier {ILEC) service.

Long Distance Telephone Services. We offer a full range of domestic and international long distance services,
including "1+" outbound calling, inbound toll free service, and standard and customized calling plans. We also
offer related services such as calling cards, operator assistance and conference calling.

High Speed Data Services. We offer a wide array of high speed data services. Our portfolio includes Frame
Relay as well as point to point solutions from 56kbps to 45mbps.

Internet Services. We have built an extensive IP network infrastructure for our PowerPath® Network. We
became registered as an official Internet Service Provider, or ISP, in 2000, which enabled us to deliver Internet
access to our customers as part of our PowerPath®™ Network converged services offering. We launched our
iMail web based email product during the summer of 2000 and plan to further expand this offering to include
unified messaging services. We provide the necessary configuration support and other network support services
on a 24-hour,7-day a week basis. We offer Internet access from 56k to 4bmbps to our business customers.

Hosting Services. We provide web hosting services via our Springfield, Massachusetts Data Center opened in
early 2001 and through our Advanced Technology Center (ATC) in Waltham, Massachusetts opened in
September 2001. The ATC is a 50,000 square foot state of the art data center that houses our Eastern
Massachusetts Super Node for the PowerPath®™ Network and an Internet/WWAN Collocation Center. We cur-
rently offer customers hosting solutions that include shared and dedicated web hosting and web site design
services, Internet/VWAN collocation services and data center storage networking services. In 2002, we plan to
offer network attached storage and remote data archiving services, and optical networking services for storage
area networking and other high bandwidth applications. These services have been designed and released to
support our customers’ growing E-business and business continuity {continuous systems uptime) require-
ments. We currently support approximately 200 web sites for customers at our ATC in Waltham,
Massachusetts. In addition, we also support 15 Internet/WAN collocations customers that utilize some or all of
our complete suite of Hosting Solutions. We are also engaged in the further analysis and potential development
of services such as managed firewall and monitoring service, data security, and other network operating sys-
tem support services.

OUR INTEGRATED COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK, OR POWERPATH®™ NETWORIK

We began deploying the first phase of our state-of-the-art, packet-switched network, the PowerPath™ Network,
in January 1999. Today, our network is fully operational providing customers with integrated broadband services
including voice, data, Internet access and access to web related services over a single connection. We offer a
broad array of sophisticated services over our network including Class-4/5 switching, which provides customers
with local and long distance voice calling capabilities. Our packet-based network infrastructure enables us to
improve our margins, enhance netwark and service quality and broaden our range of product and value added
service offerings. Our network services result in a more dynamic solution for our customers providing them
with better performance at less cost and it has also demonstrated the ability to stimulate additional demand for
new value added services.

The open architecture of our PowerPath®™ Network gives us the opportunity to integrate new and emerging
technology to meet our customers’ increasing demands for high capacity and reliable voice, data, Internet
access and web-based services. The network utilizes Cisco ESR/GSR and Cisco BPX/MGX 8850 IP + ATM
routers/switches, which we believe are the most reliable and proven method to handle all types of data, voice,
Internet and video traffic. By building out our own fiber infrastructure, switches and hubs are now consolidated
in major regional locations called Super Nodes. Connectivity to customers is provided over protected SONET
rings that expand to serving Central Offices (COs), improving service reliability, increasing bandwidth and at the
same time reducing leased circuit costs in the middle mile. T1s, multiple T1s using Inverse Multiplexing for
ATM (IMA)}, DS3s or OCN services are then extended from the COs to customer sites covering the last mile.

We believe our packet switched network is superior to the existing circuit switched network used by our com-
petitors. The basic voice technology within the existing telephone-switching network has not changed for many
years while data technology has advanced dramatically. Circuit switch technology dedicates a fixed amount of
capacity for each voice line. In a packet switched environment, there is no single dedicated circuit and both
voice and data information is broken apart and turned into packets that share a common facility. They are then
mixed with other types of data communications and then reassembled at the end.




Our ability to transmit via packets provides for superior network utilization and results in the ability to transmit
more information through a similar channel. As a result, more information, i.e. voice and data, is transported at
a lower cost and more efficiently with the ability to provide multipie levels of QOS.

We are currently offering local dial tone (where we have elected to offer it), long distance voice, data and
Internet services over our network. We introduced local dial tone in the first quarter of 2007, which will enable
us to provide all of our customer services on the PowerPath®™ Network. The customer does not have to discon-
nect from the local phone company and then reconnect onto our network. The transition of the customer from
the local phone company’s voice services to our network requires only socme minor wiring at the customers
location and the reprogramming of the customer’s system to direct local voice service traffic to our equipment.
This strategy enables customers to keep existing phone numbers and enjoy the built-in redundancy of the sep-
arate physical connection to the local phone company.

ADDING QUR QWNED FIBER TO THE POQWERPATHS NETWORK

With the objective to achieve competitive transport capacity and improve time to market of our PowerPath™
Network and value added services, we launched a major Company owned dark fiber program in early 2000. The
initial phase of the fiber program covers our current footprint in the Northeastern United States continuing
through the Mid-Atlantic region. The buildout of these segments is nearing completion, with all major segments
expected to be completed in the Fall of 2002.

Our fiber network incorporates technology that is based on carrier class optical networking equipment, specifi-
cally Cisco's ONS 15454, 16327 Synchronous Optical Network, or SONET, switches, and Cisco's ONS 15800
Dense Wave-link Multiplexing, or DWM, switches.

In 2000 and early 2001, we entered into several agreements with metro and regional fiber carriers to provide
connections for the middle and, where possible, last mile connections to the customer. These network build
outs are a continuation of our long-haul transport infrastructure making use of the same WDM/SONET technol-
ogy. Our metro and regional! fiber program is designed to expand outward from the 8,300 route miles of fiber
purchased from Williams Communications and connect to core ILEC CO's. By lighting the fiber closer to our
customers and operating a greater percentage of the facilities on which customer traffic is routed, we are able
10 improve provisioning intervals, more efficiently maintain the PowerPath™ Network, reduce dependency on
the local telephone company and improve margins. The long haul, regional and metro fiber facilities of our net-
work will alfow for consolidation of equipment and collocation resources. This cost saving measure, referred to
as the Super Node program, permits centralization of service inventory spares, efficient monitoring of network
elements and fewer points of failure, while maintaining robust security, redundancy and area for expansion. It
also results in reduced expense associated with Point of Presence (POP) collocation and leased circuits.

SALES AND CUSTOWMER CARE

We market telecommunications services by developing long-term business relationships with our customers
and offering them comprehensive management of their telecommunications requirements. Each customer is
supported by a dedicated local account team led by the Sales Account Executive and backed by the customer
service team that includes a Network Coordinator and Branch Operations Management and a technical support
team. This team works with the customer to design, implement and maintain an integrated telecommunica-
tions solution. The team also reviews the customer'’s services on a regular basis through on-site meetings and,
based upon changes in the customer’s needs or available technologies, recommends updates in order to make
the best use of currently available products and services. We believe that providing localized, proactive high
quality customer care promotes continued sales of new services and reduces customer churn.

SALES AND SERVICE INFRASTRUCTURE

Our 26 branch offices are currently staffed with over 450 individuals, representing approximately 64% of our
employees. As of December 31, 2001, there were 200 Sales and Sales Management, 210 Service and Service
Management, 20 Field Technical Support and 20 Branch Administrators serving markets in Maine, New
Hampshire, Vermont, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania,
Maryland, Washington D.C. and Virginia.

CUSTOMER SALES AND SERVICE MODEL

At the initial meeting with a prospective customer, our Account Executives first obtain a detailed understanding
of the customer’s business, including their method of operations, a description of their short and long-term
business plans and the communications challenges they currently face. A thorough, detailed inventory of the
customer’s current communications services and costs is prepared and analyzed. We then present a communi-
cations solution to our customer based on our analysis of their business and goals. We outline options and rec-
ommendations designed to eliminate unnecessary expense, implement new services to improve the functional
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and financial performance of their network and position them for future business or technology requirements.
Account Executives also review with the customer the benefits of our comprehensive, ongoing account man-
agement program which includes timely responses to daily customer needs, and a proactive approach of keep-
ing the customer informed of industry changes. We believe the relationship-intensive approach of assigning
both Account Executives and Network Coordinators to each customer account results in high customer satis-
faction and retention rates.

Our Account Executives regularly participate in training programs on subjects such as solution-oriented sales,
comprehensive customer care, network design and other technical features of our services. We seek to moti-
vate and retain our Account Executives through extensive training and a commission structure that supports
our relationship oriented sales and service policies and rewards on-net, on our own facilities, account growth
and customer retention.

'CUSTOMER CARE

Our Network Coordinators are the first line of support for our customers. They are thoroughly trained in each of
the Company'’s service offerings and are responsible for customer care. Network Coordinators are located in
each of our sales and service branches and are responsible for customer accounts in direct support of the sales
executives. Each sales representative keeps informed of the unique needs and aspects of each individual cus-
tomer to whom they are assigned. Our localized, multi-step account management process provides an ongoing
and comprehensive service program to our customers. This process ranges from long-term consultative plan-
ning to prompt and responsive handling of service issues.

Our customer care program is designed to provide prompt action in response to customer inquiries and com-

plaints. The local sales branches are staffed 11 hours a day, 5 days a week. At other times, incoming calls are

automatically connected to a central customer care center which is staffed 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. We
believe that our Network Coordinators are motivated to provide the highest level of customer care since a sig-
nificant portion of their compensation is based on customer retention and satisfaction.

OUR INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Our information systems include five central applications which fully integrate our sales and account manage-
ment, customer care, provisioning, billing and financial processes. Automation of each of these processes is
designed for high transaction volumes, accuracy, timely installation, accurate billing feeds and quality customer
service, all done in a secure environment. Data entered in one application is generally exported into all other
applications. Each branch office is connected via wide area data connections to the central processor. Our
employees have online access to our information systems from their branch personal computers or laptop com-
puters as well as remote access through our Virtual Private Network (VPN}).

We also installed an electronic interface to most of our major suppliers. When & sales executive wishes to
place an order, our information systems electronically direct it to the appropriate supplier and monitor any
delays in provisioning the order. Once the order is provisioned, our information systems automatically remove it
from the in-process order file, update the customer’s service inventory and network configuration, initiate
billing, post the sales executive's commission and update our financial reports.

Our information systems include the following applications:

Account and Sales Mlanagement. Our account management application is the hub of our information sys-

f tems. It stores all of our customer-related information, such as installed services location detail, contact infor-
mation, transaction history and account profile. Our account management application also automatically exports
data to our customized sales application. Our sales application is a fully-integrated database that provides sales
personnel with access to information for pricing services, customized sales proposals, customer correspon-

. dence, sales performance, referencing methods and procedures, service descriptions, competitive information
and historical profiles of our current and prospective customers. These historical profiles include details of
installed services, recent transactions and billing history. Our sales system can be used both on- and off-line
while maintaining a secure environment. All entries made while off-line are automatically updated to the central
processor and all relevant data is simultaneously exported to the other central applications each time a sales-
person connects to the network.

Customer Care. Our Network Coordinators use our account care application to review installed services, make
additions, changes and deletions to accounts, initiate and track repair and service work and review past billing
for any customer. This closed loop application provides automatic follow up and records all transactions in a
customer history file. Service orders and repair requests input in our account care application are automatically
exported into our provisioning application.




Provisioning. We generally direct customer orders through our provisioning application electronically to our
major suppliers. We track these orders through our account care application from initiation through completion.
Order information is entered by the account team at each branch and then forwarded for technical design
review. When we provide PowerPath™ Network services to a customer, we first develop a voice and data plan
for that customer’s location and determine the appropriate broadband access facility (T1 or multiple T1s) neces-
sary to accommodate all of those services. Upon design acceptance, an Access Service Request (ASR) is
issued to a local service provider to provision the PowerPath®™ Network access connection. This interval is from
the local service provider and currently averages 20 days. Upon electronic receipt of the Firm Order
Confirmation (FOC), the installation and services appointment is scheduled. Network Coordinators are notified
of the date and they coordinate that date with the customer. Two days before installation, network addresses
and services are assigned throughout the network and the Integrated Access Device (IAD) is programmed and
shipped to the installation depot. On the FOC date, the access service is tested prior 10 acceptance. The fol-
lowing day, the IAD is installed and the customer's services are activated. When the IAD at the customer’s
location is connected to the customer’s phone system, this puts voice services on our PowerPath™ Network
and the connection of the customer routers puts data and Internet services on our network. With the use of
fiber within our PowerPaths network, the total interval from receipt of customer order 10 service activation
now approaches 30 days. If any delay in the process occurs, our information system alerts the sales and serv-
ice team who then have the ability 1o take corrective action and also notify the customer of a possible delay.
Once the order has been filled the information is automatically fed to our billing application.

Billing and Customer Interface. Our billing application gives us the ability to provide our customers a single
bill for all the services they purchase from us. Our billing application also allows the customer to review historic
bill detail, perform customized usage analyses and download information directly to their own accounting appli-
cations. Using a secure Web-based application called IntelliViEW®™, our customers have near real-time online
access to our billing application and are able to review and analyze their bills and related information with many
useful features including:

Call summary Time of day analysis

Call detail . Day of week analysis
Click-a-Bill drill down : Location summary and analysis
Line usage summary Group summary and analysis
Expensive call breakdown e-mail notification of billing
Frequent call breakdown Unlimited query capability

Watchdog threshold monitoring

Customer billing statements are also available for electronic download or on paper. Paper statements generated
by our billing application offer our customers different management formats.

Financial. Data from our billing application is electronically transferred to our financial application. Our financial
application is used to track and prepare reports on sales activity, commissions, branch operations, branch prof-
itability and cash flows. The financial application also compiles this data for our periodic financial reports. In
addition, this application provides internal controls for revenue tracking and costing. The integrated nature of
our information systems allows us to operate each branch as a separate cost center.

Our Information Management Platform {{MP) is built on a N-Tiered Architecture. Tier One covers the Data
Mart built on Oracle and EMC storage technology. Tier Two to Tier Four successively provide the Business
Systems layer including the Operating Support System from Metasolv (OSS), the Network Management
Systems layer (NMS), the Element Management Systems (EMS) and the Portal layer. Tier Two to Four are inter-
connected with Tier-One through a Tibco Data Bus. Finally Tier-Five is the client Tier, a web based client allow-
ing our employees, partners and customers to access information with various levels of authorizations using
Windows, Windows NT or web browsers. Our IMP is built on a state-of-the-art, open standard architecture pro-
viding a high level of reliability, flexibility and scalability to accommodate future growth. The IMP is fully redun-
dant as all business critical information is mirrored between our dual data centers (Springfield and Waltham).
Most systems are running on SUN-Microsystems(tm) and UNIX({tm). Furthermore, we are building flow-through
provisioning capabilities integrating our packet based network with our IMP, finalizing our vision of creating an
IP and web centric services platform that will ultimately allow our customers to self-serve theair services activity
from the Internet.

COMPETITION

Competition from Single-Source Providers. We operate in a competitive environment and have a relatively
small market share in each market in which we operate. We face substantial competition from a variety of data
transport, data networking and telephony service providers. We face competition from single-source providers




and from providers of each individual telecommunications service. Many of these competitors are larger and
better capitalized than we are. Many of our competitors are incumbent providers, with long standing relation-
ships with their customers and greater brand name recognition.

Verizon is a competitor for local, voice and data services. We expect that based on regulatory developments,
Verizon will increasingly be a competitor for long distance services as well. For example, Verizon was granted
authority by the FCC under Section 271 to provide in-region interLATA services, including long distance serv-
ices, in New York state, Massachusetts and Rhode Island. Verizon also has applications pending before the FCC
to provide in-region interLATA services in Vermont, Maine, New Jersey, and New Hampshire that may be
approved in 2002. SBC Communication, inc.’s affiliate, The Southern New England Telephone Company, is a
major competitor in Connecticut for local, long distance and data services. Competitors in our markets for sin-
gle source solutions include Choice One and Time Warner Telecom. Competitors for our data services also
include AT&T Local, Sprint and Worldcom. Our competitors for long distance services include all the major carri-
ers such as AT&T, Worldcom and Sprint.

Under the Telecommunications Act of 1996, or Telecom Act, the Regional Bell Operating Companies or the
Regional Bell Operating Companies (RBOCs) are permitted to provide interLATA long distance service outside
those states in which they have traditionally provided local exchange service (“out-of-region” long distance serv-
ice) upon receipt of the necessary state and/or federal regulatory approvals that are otherwise applicable. The
RBOCs are permitted to provide long distance service within the regions in which they traditionally provided local
exchange service ("in-region” long distance service) on a state-by-state basis upon approval of the FCC and
based upon a finding that the RBOC has complied with the 14-point checklist outlined in Section 271 of the
Telecom Act. This 14-point checklist is designed to ensure that competitors have the ability to provide local tele-
phone services in competition with the RBOC. Once the RBOCs are allowed to offer in-region long distance
services under the terms of Section 271 of the Telecom Act, they will be in a position to offer local and long dis-
tance services similar to the services we offer and will likely become more effective competitors. Verizon was
the first RBOC permitted to provide in-region long distance services when its Section 271 application for New
York was approved in 1999. SBC is also permitted to offer in-region long distance services in Connecticut,
because its operating subsidiary there was not part of the Bell system. Verizon and other RBOCs are expected
to continue to apply for authority to provide in-region long distance services during the coming year.

Although the Telecom Act and other federal and state regulatory initiatives will provide us with new business
opportunities, as competition increases regulators are likely to provide the incumbent local exchange carriers
with more pricing flexibility. Our revenues may be adversely affected if the ILECs elect to lower their rates and
sustain these lower rates over time. We believe that we may be able to offset the effect of lower rates with
the capital and operating efficiency of our network and by offering new services to our target customers, but
we can provide no assurance that this will occur. In addition, if future regulatory decisions give ILECs increased
pricing flexibility or other regulatory relief, such decisions could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Competition for Provision of Local Exchange Services. In the local exchange market, ILECs, including
RBOCs, continue to hold near-monopoly positions. We also face competition or prospective competition from
one or more integrated communications providers, and from other competitive providers, including providers
who do not own their own network. Many of these competitors are larger and better capitalized than we are.
Some carriers have entered into interconnection agreements with ILECs and either have begun, or in the near
future likely will begin, offering local exchange service in each of our markets. As of February 8, 1999, the
largest long distance carriers were permitted to bundle local and long distance services. This removes one of
our competitive advantages. Other entities that currently offer or are potentially capable of offering switched
services include cable television companies, electric utilities, other long distance carriers, microwave carriers,
and large customers who build private networks.

Wireless telephone system operators are also competitors in the provisioning of loca!l services. Cellular, per-
sonal communications service, and other commercial mobile radio services providers may offer wireless serv-
ices to fixed locations, rather than just to mobile customers. This ability to provide fixed as well as mobile serv-
ices will enable wireless providers to offer wireless local loop service and other services to fixed locations {(e.g.,
office and apartment buildings) in direct competition with us and other providers ‘of traditional fixed telephone
service. In addition, the FCC has auctioned substantial blocks of spectrum for fixed use including local
exchange services.

Competition for Provision of Long Distance Services. The long distance market is significantly more com-
petitive than the local exchange market. In the long distance market numerous entities compete for the same
customers. In addition, customers frequently change long distance providers in response to lower rates or pro-
motional incentives by competitors. This results in a high average rate of customer loss, or churn, in the long




distance market. Prices in the long distance market have declined significantly in recent years and are expected
to continue to decline. Competition in this market will further increase as RBOCs are permitted to offer in-
region long distance services.

Data and Internet Services. The market for high speed data services and access to the Internet is highly com-
petitive. We expect competition in this market to continue to intensify. Our competitors in this market will
include Internet service providers and other telecommunications companies, including large interexchange carri-
ers and RBOCs. Many of these competitors have greater financial, technological and marketing resources than
those available to us.

Hosting Solutions. The competitive landscape for Hosting Solutions has changed over the past year. Certain
Phase one Collocation Companies have failed, giving way to Telecom Services Providers, like CTC, offering E-
Business and Business Continuity Services in conjunction with a powerful voice/data communication network
and associated services. The main competition in this area comes from Worldcom, Sprint, AT&T, and Genuity.
In addition there are other Collocation Companies that offer these services. End users are looking for single
source providers of communications infrastructure services that include Web Hosting, Internet/WAN
Collocation, and a variety of managed Data Storage services. End users look to their Hosting Services provider
to partner with Applications Support Providers (ASP's) that can support Network Operating Systems, Client
Server Desktop to Enterprise software applications, and ongeing software and help desk support. End users
focus on E-business and Business Continuity is driving them to buy these services from their telecom services
provider who have built their reputation and services portfolio based on doing business on the Internet and
guaranteed uptime of services through Service Level Agreements (SLA's).

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The local and long distance telephony services and, to a lesser extent, the data services we provide are regu-
lated by federal, state, and, to some extent, local government authorities. The FCC has jurisdiction over all
telecommunications common carriers to the extent they provide interstate or international communications
services. Each state regulatory commission has jurisdiction over the same carriers with respect to the provision
of intrastate communications services. Local governments sometimes impose franchise or licensing require-
ments on telecommunications carriers and regulate construction activities involving public rights-of-way.
Changes to the regulations imposed by any of these regulators could have a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.

In recent years, the regulation of the telecommunications industry has been in a state of flux as the United
States Congress and various state legislatures have passed laws seeking to foster greater competition in
telecommunications markets. The FCC and state utility commissions have adopted many new rules to imple-
ment this legislation and encourage competition. These changes, which are still incomplete, have created new
opportunities and challenges for us and our competitors. The following summary of regulatory developments
and legislation is not intended to describe all present and proposed federal, state and local regulations and leg-
islation affecting the telecommunications industry. Some of these and other existing federal and state regula-
tions are the subject of judicial proceedings, legislative hearings and administrative proposals which could
change, in varying degree, the manner in which this industry operates. We cannot predict the outcome of
these proceedings, or their impact on the telecommunications industry at this time. :

FEDERAL REGULATION

Except with respect to access charges (see below), we are not subject to price cap or rate of return regulation
at the federal leve! and we are not currently required to obtain FCC authorization for the installation, acquisition
or operation of our domestic interexchange network facilities. However, we must comply with the reguire-
ments of common carriage under the Communications Act. We are subject to the general requirement that our
charges and terms for our telecommunications services be "just and reasonable” and that we not make any
“unjust or unreasonable discrimination” in our charges or terms. The FCC has jurisdiction to act upon com-
plaints against any common carrier for failure to comply with its statutory obligations.

Comprehensive amendments to the Communications Act were made by the Telecom Act, which was signed
into law on February 8, 1996. The Telecom Act effected changes in regulation at both the federal and state lev-
els that affect virtually every segment of the telecommunications industry. The stated purpose of the Telecom
Act is to promote competition in all areas of telecommunications.

The FCC is charged with establishing nationa! guidelines to implement certain portions of the Telecom Act. The
FCC issued its interconnection order on August 8, 1996. On July 18, 1897, the United States Court of Appeals
for the Eighth Circuit issued a decision vacating the FCC’s pricing rules, as well as certain other portions of the
FCC's interconnection rules, on the grounds that the FCC had improperly intruded into matters reserved for




state jurisdiction. On January 25, 1999, the Supreme Court largely reversed the Eighth Circuit's order, holding
that the FCC has general jurisdiction to implement the local competition provisions of the Telecom Act. In so
doing, the Supreme Court states that the FCC has authority to set pricing guidelines for unbundled network ele-
ments or UNE, to prevent ILECs from disaggregating existing combinations of network elements, and to estab-
lish “pick and choose” rules regarding interconnection agreements. The FCC's “pick and choose” rules permit
a carrier seeking interconnection to “pick and choose"” among the terms of service from other interconnection
agreements between the ILECs and other competitive local exchange carriers. This action reestablishes the
validity of many of the FCC rules vacated by the Eighth Circuit.

in its July 18, 2000 decision, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit vacated the FCC's rule
regarding the methodology for calculating the discount rate at which ILECs must resell retail telecommunica-
tions services to competitors, and remanded that rule to the FCC. That order is now final. As a result of this
decision we could experience reduced margins on the ILEC services that we resell. In fact, as a result of this
decision, Verizon has proposed to reduce the discount rate available to use and other resellers in
Massachusetts from approximately 25% to approximately 14%. We and other reseliers have challenged this
proposed reduction in a proceeding before the Massachusetts Department of Telecommunications and Energy,
but there is no assurance that our challenge will be successtul.

In the meantime, the FCC began a review in December 2001 of its rules regarding the unbundling of network
elements. Some telecommunications carriers, particularly the ILECS, have argued that this list of elements
should be reduced. In particular, they propose that any elements that CLECs use to provide highspeed data
services should not be provided at cost-based rates. Moreover, there are some carriers, including some CLECS,
who have proposed new limits on ILEC obligations to provide unbundied interoffice transport and unbundled
switching in many areas. If certain network elements are no longer available, we will need to either provide
these elements, which would increase costs, or forego the opportunity to provide service to certain customers,
which would reduce revenues. We believe that the FCC will decide this issue sometime in 2002,

There is also legislation pending in Congress that would also limit CLEC access to certain unbundled network
elements, House BIll H.R. 1542 (the “Tauzin-Dingell bill") would prohibit state or federal regulation of high-speed
data services, with the effect that ILECs would no longer be required to provide unbundied elements at cost-
based rates (if at all) if those elements were to be used to provide high-speed data services. Votes on this bill are
expected in 2002. The implications of this bill are broad and not entirely predictable at this point. Again, if certain
network elements are no longer available, we will need to either provide these elements, which would increase
costs, or forego the opportunity to provide service to certain customers, which would reduce revenues.

In December 2001, the FCC also initiated several proceedings that together will determine the key terms and
conditions under which ILECs may provide broadband services, including a review of what UNEs ILECs must
make available to CLECs for provision of broadband and other services. These proceedings will examine
whether ILECs should be treated as “non-dominant” in the broadband telecommunications marketplace. This
proceeding will set the overall framework under which ILECs may provide broadband services while at the
same time determining how CLECs will be able to provide broadband services using UNEs. If ILECs are deter-
mined to be non-dominant in the provisioning of broadband services, it is possible that they will be given more
competitive pricing flexibility, which could decrease cur margins on these types of services. Moreover, the
ILECs may no longer provide us with UNEs for our broadband services, which may increase our costs. At this
point, we cannot predict the cutcome of this proceeding.

The FCC has adopted rules designed to make it easier and less expensive for competitive local exchange carri-
ers to obtain collocation at ILEC central offices by, among other things, restricting the ILECs’ ability to prevent
certain types of equipment from being collocated and requiring ILECs to offer alternative collocation arrange-
ments to competitive local exchange carriers.

However, the Tauzin-Dingell bill has provisions that would roll back some of these rules and would limit the
types of equipment that CLECs could collocate and place restrictions on their ability to connect to other colloca-
tors. If these provisions are passed into law, we would likely experience increased costs.

Under the Communications Act, ILECs have an obligation to negotiate with us in good faith to enter into inter-
connection agreements. Currently, we have or are concluding negotiation of interconnections throughout our
footprint. However, as explained above, the FCC rules governing pricing standards for interconnection and
access to the unbundled network elements of the ILECs are currently being reviewed at the Supreme Court. If
the Supreme Court strikes down aspects of the FCC's pricing rules, the FCC may adopt a new pricing method-
ology that would require us to pay a higher price to ILECs for interconnection and unbundied network ele-
ments. This could have a detrimental effect on our business.




The Telecom Act will permit RBOCS to provide long distance services in-region upon demonstrating to the FCC
and state regulatory agencies that they have adhered to the Telecommunication Act's 14-point competitive
checklist. Many RBOCs have subsequently filed applications with various state public utility commissions and
the FCC seeking approval to offer in-region long distance service. To date, Verizon has been granted long dis-
tance authority in New York, Massachusetts, Connecticut, Rhode Island and Pennsylvania and has applications
pending in Vermont, New Hampshire, Maine and New Jersey.

On October 31, 1996, the FCC issued an order that required nondominant interexchange carriers, like us, to
cease filing tariffs for our domestic interexchange services. This order subsequently was stayed by a federal
appeals court; however, recently the court removed the stay. Accordingly, nondominant interstate services
providers are no longer able to rely on the filing of tariffs with the FCC as a means of providing notice to cus-
tomers of prices, terms and conditions under which they offer their domestic interstate interexchange Services.
During 2001, we canceled our FCC tariffs as a result of the FCC's orders.

In December 2000, the FCC released its Second Report and Order in the Matter of Numbering Resource
Optimization in which the FCC adopted rules governing the utilization and forecasting of phone numbers, the
guidelines for area code relief, and implementation of One-Thousand Number Block Pooling. Only carriers with
number portability capable switches can participate in One-Thousand Number Block Pooling.

Customers may presubscribe to various providers for their local exchange, local toll and long distance services
and have the option of changing providers at any time. The FCC and some states have adopted rules designed
to prevent unauthorized changes in an end-user's carrier{s) of choice. Unauthorized changes in service providers
is known as “slamming”. The FCC has levied substantial fines for slamming. The risk of financial damage and
business reputation to slamming rules offenders of the FCC's could be significant.

Over the last few years, the FCC has instituted various reforms to the existing rate structure for interstate
access to the local exchange network that are designed to move access charges, over time, to more cost
based rate levels and structures. These changes have reduced, and will continue to reduce, the access charges
paid by long distance carriers to, ILECs and will shift charges currently based on minutes of use, to a flat-rate
monthly per line charge on end users.

On May 31, 2000 the FCC adopted the proposal of the Coalition for Affordable Long Distance Service
("CALLS") that significantly restructures and, reduces in some respects, the interstate access charges of the
RBOCs. Among the more significant regulatory changes established by the CALLS order, the RBOCs are
required to reduce switched access charges to an average of $0.0055/minute. Price cap ILECs are additionally
required to eliminate the presubscribed interexchange carrier charge {“PICC") as a separate charge and fold it
into an increased End-User Common Line Charge ("EUCL"). AT&T and Sprint have committed in this proceed-
ing to pass on access charge reductions to consumers, and to eliminate minimum monthly usage charges.
Although the CALLS order will not apply directly to CLECs, ILEC reductions in switched access charges may
place some downward pressure on CLECs like us to reduce our own switched access charges. While we may
be able to increase the EUCL rate to our customers, competitive pricing pressures may make this difficult or
impossible.

On April 27, 2001 the FCC released an order concerning CLEC interstate access charges specifically. The order
seeks to reduce, over three years, CLEC interstate access charges to the level of the ILEC in whose territory
the CLEC operates, except in the unlikely event that the IXC agrees to pay a higher rate. The FCC established a
benchmark rate at or below which CLEC interstate access charges will be presumed just and reasonable and
which CLECs may impose on IXCs by tariff. For new entrants such as us, the FCC set the benchmark rate at
the level of the ILEC in whose territory the CLEC operates.

In December 2001, the President signed into law the USA PATRIOT Act. Enacted in response to the terrorist

acts of September 11, 2001, the Act (1) expands the scope of the government’s pen register/trap and trace sur-

veillance powers; (2} permits providers to disclose subscribers’ communications or records related thereto to

law enforcement or government entities; (3} allows nationwide surveillance under a single court order; (4) sim-

plifies procedures for seizure of voicemail and other communications; (6) subjects cable providers to the wire-

tapping laws; (6) permits surveillance of computer trespassers; and (7) harmonizes the wiretapping provisions

of the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Act and the federal wiretapping laws. The PATRIOT Act allows elec-

tronic communications service providers to divulge communications to law enforcement agencies or records to ‘
governmental entities in certain circumstances, but does not provide service providers choosing to do so with

liability protections. It is possible that this law will impose additional administrative burdens on us which will {
increase our costs. Moreover, the extent of carrier liability, if any, for divulging customer information is not clear. '
We may find that complying with this law exposes us to costly litigation.
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STATE REGULATION

To the extent that we provide telecommunications services which originate and terminate in the same state,
we are subject to the jurisdiction of that state's public service commission. As our local service business and
product lines expand, we will offer more intrastate service and become increasingly subject to state regulation.
The Telecom Act maintains the authority of individual state public service commissions to preside over rate and
other proceedings, as discussed above, and impose their own regulation of local exchange and interexchange
services so long as such regulation is not inconsistent with the requirements of the Telecom Act. For instance,
states may impose tariff and filing requirements, consumer protection measures and obligations to contribute
to universal service, and other funds.

We are subject to requirements in some states to obtain prior approval for, or notify the state commission of,
“any transfers of control, sales of assets, corporate reorganizations, issuances of stock or debt instruments and

related transactions. Although we believe such authorizations could be cbtained in due course, there can be no

assurance that the FCC or state commissions would grant us authority to complete any of these transactions.

We have state regulatory authority to provide competitive facilities-based local exchange services and interex-
change services in 14 states. We also have state regulatory authority to provide resold interexchange services
throughout the remaining continental United States. The Telecom Act generally preempts state statutes and
regulations that restrict the provision of compstitive local services. States, however, may still restrict competi-
tion in some rural areas. As a result of this preemption, we will be free to provide the full range of local, long
distance, and data services in any state. While this action greatly increases our potential for growth, it also
increases the amount of competition to which we may be subject.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REGULATION

We may be required to obtain from municipal authorities, street opening and construction permits to install our
facilities in some cities. In some of the areas where we provide service, we may be subject to municipal fran-
chise requirements requiring us to pay license or franchise fees either on a percentage of gross revenue, flat
fee or other basis. The Telecom Act requires municipalities to charge nondiscriminatory fees to all telecommu-
nications providers, but it is uncertain how quickly this requirement will be implemented by particular municipal-
ities in which we operate or plan to operate or whether it will be implemented without a legal challenge.

EMPLOVEES
As of March 25, 2002, we employed 705 persons. None of our employees are represented by a collective bar-
gaining agreement.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters and technology center are located in leased space in Waltham, Massachusetts. We have a
back-up network operations center in Springfield, Massachusetts. We also lease offices in nine states.
Although we believe that our leased facilities are adequate at this time, we expect to lease any additional facili-
ties that may be required for future expansion.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

{a) Pending Legal Proceedings.
We are party to suits and regulatory proceedings arising in the normal course of business which we believe are
not material individually or in the aggregate.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART [0

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our commoen stock is listed on the Nasdag National Market under the symbo! “CPTL.” Following is the range
of high and low trading prices on the Nasdag National Market for our common stock for the periods indicated.
All prices reflect the March 17, 2000 three-for-two stock split.

Price Range
High Low
Calendar Year 2030
FirstQuarter.......ccooovveiiiiiinnn, $56.13 $22.67
Second Quarter.........cceeceeein. $45.63 $19.75
Third Quarter .......ocvoevveeeei $36.06 $13.13
Fourth Quarter...........ccocvevveen, $20.44 $3.88
Calendar Year 2001
First Quarter..................o.... $15.63 $4.44
Second Quarter .......cccecvivenen . $7.73 $2.65
Third Quarter..........ccooeeeiiiienn $7.23 $2.93
Fourth Quarter.........cccccoooviin.. $7.95 $4.13

The last sale price of the common stock on the Nasdag National Market on March 25, 2002 was $2.50. Qur
common stock was held by 481 stockholders of record.

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and we have no plans to do so in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings, if any, to develop and expand our business. In addition, the terms of our
credit facility and the Series B preferred stock restrict our ability to pay cash dividends on our common stock.
We also expect the terms of agreements governing any future indebtedness to restrict our ability to pay cash
dividends.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, we did not issue any securities which were not registered under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

At the annual meeting of directors held on July 27, 2000, we changed our fiscal year from a twelve month
period ending March 31 to a twelve month period ending December 31. The consolidated financial statements
include presentation of the nine months ended December 31, 2000.

The following selected unaudited financial data for the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended
December 31, 2000 and the three years ended March 31, 2000 are derived from our consolidated financia!
statements. You should read the following financial data together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and the related
notes.

All earnings per share and weighted average share information included in the following financial data have
been restated to reflect the March 17, 2000 three-for-two stock split.

The following unaudited financial data for each year is presented on a pro forma basis assuming the adoption of
SAB 101 as described in Note 2 and also pro forma twelve months ended December 31, 2000 and pro forma
nine months ended December 31, 1999 to the consolidated financial statements to permit comparison of oper-
ating results and financial condition for all periods presented.
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Statement of Operations Data:
AGENCY TEVENUES ....vcevrrriiiieiireeiir e ciaee e
Telecommunications revenues............c..oce...

Total revenues
Cost of telecommunications revenue
{excluding depreciation and

AMOTTIZALION) 1ot
Selling, general and administrative

BXPENSES ..o
Depreciation and amortization..............cc..ooe....

Loss from operations ...
Loss before extraordinary item

and cumulative effect..........
Loss before cumulative effect
INET 0SS 1ooie e et e e

Per Share Data:

Loss per share before extraordinary

item and cumulative effect

Basic and Diluted........cccvivvivrinic e
Loss per share before

cumulative effect

Basic and Diluted.........coviviirieiiiiieceee
Net loss per share

Basic and Diluted.......c.ooooiii

Other Financial Data:
EBITDA loss ...
Capital expenditures.....
Net cash used by operating activities .............
Net cash used in investing activities...............
Net cash provided by financing

ACTIVITIES .t o

Fiscal Year ended March 31,

1998 as 1899 as
previously pro forma previously pro forma
reported 1888 reported 1989
{dollars in thousands, except per share information)

$ 24,775 $24,775 $— $ -
16,172 15,962 70,964 70,046
40,947 40,737 70,964 70,046
14,039 13,854 61,866 61,055
29,488 29,472 52,521 52,451
1,418 1,418 3,778 3,778
(3,998) (4,007) (47,201) (47,238)
(2,498) (2,507} (51,238} (51,275)
(2,498) (2,507) (51,238) (51,275)
$(2,498) ${2,507) $(51,238) (51,275)
(0.17) 0.17) (3.45) (3.46)
0.17) 0.17) (3.45) (3.46)
0.17) (0.17) (3.45) (3.48)

$ (2,405) $(2,414) $(43,346) $(43,383)
6,109 6,109 36,041 36,041
(7,951) (7,951) (33,254) (33,254}
4,765 4,765 6,282 6,282
8,479 8,479 39,622 39,622

13




Fiscal Year Ended Nine Months Ended Year Ended

March 31, ended December 31 December 31
2000 as !
previously pro forma pro forma pro forma A
reported 2030 19388 2030 2000 20 !

{dollars in thousands, except per share information)

Statement of Operations Data:

Telecommunications revenues.. ..o, e $163,101 $147,817 $102,591 $170,353 $215,278 $298,438
Cost of telecommunications revenue

{excluding depreciation and

AMOTLIZATION) .eveiiii st 119,586 116,984 82,076 133,196 168,103 240,519
Selling, general and administrative

EXPENSES (o eiieimiiiei it e 56,676 56,363 40,910 63,421 78,875 82,534
Depreciation and amortization..............cccocceve. 18,754 18,754 11,681 34,917 41,389 77,002
Loss from operations ..........coeveveercniiieeirien e (41,918) (44,584) (32,076) (61,181) (73,689) (100,617)
Loss before extraordinary item

and cumulative effect........ooiin, (57.073) (69,742) (43,456) (69,326) (85,811) (124,173)
Loss before cumulative effect .. (59,504) (62,173) (43,456) 69,328) (88,042) {124,173}
NETIOSS 1o et $(59,504) $(62,173) $(43,456) $(72,205) $(80,921) $(124,173)

Per Share Data:

Loss per share before extraordinary

item and cumulative effect

Basic and Diluted.........ocooeiniiviciies e $(2.89) $(3.02) $(2.30) ${(3.08) $(3.84) $(5.34) \
Loss per share before

cumulative effect

Basic and Diluted.........cooiii (3.01) (3.14) (2.30) (3.08) (3.93) (8.34)
Net loss per share
Basic and Diluted.. ... $(3.01) $(3.14) $(2.30) $(3.19) $(4.05) $(5.34)

Other Financial Data:
EBITDA loss before non-recurring

CRAMGE ..ot $(23,153) $(25,822) $(20,395) $(23,385) $(26,390) $(23,865} I
EBITDA losS ......... .. (23,1863) (25,822) (20,395) (26,264) (31,699 (23,865} i
Capital expenditures... ) 71,187 71,187 (41,417) 139,010 168,786 106,472 3
Net cash used by operating activities . . (36,884) (36,984) (27,562) (44,608) (56,087) (38,869)

Net cash used in investing activities............. 43,721 43,721 (26,155) 79,682 {95,194} (75,033)

Net cash provided by financing

ACHIVILIES oottt $98,544 $98,544 $66,985 $184,226 $215,788 $100,162
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Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents ...
TOtal BSSETS ..ot et e
Total long-term debt, including

CUMTENt POTLION .o
Series A redeemable convertible

preferred StOCK ..o
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) ...
Stockholders’ equity

(deficit)/preferred stOCK ....ooooovvviviiiiiie

As of March 31,

1998 as
previously pro forma
reported 1888

(dollars in thousands)

$2,168 $2,168
30,768 30,568
9,673 9,673
11,966 11,957
$11,966 $11,957

1589 as
previously pro forma
reported 1999
$ 2,254 $2,254
69,482 68,564
64,858 64,858
12,672 12,672
(37,144) (37,181)
$(24,472) $(24,509)

Fiscal Year Ended

Nine Months Ended

Year Ended

Macch 31, ended December 31 December 31
2000 as
previously pro forma 1899 2000
reported 2000 {Pro forma} 2000 (Pro forma) 2001
(dollars in thousands, except per share information)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents...............n, $ 20,093 $ 20,093 $ 15,522 $ 80,029 $ 80,029 $ 66,289
Total @SSBIS. .o 162,233 157,046 123,074 344,129 344,129 367,438
Total fong-term debt, including
CUITENT POTLION ..oe it 129,122 128,122 85,446 184,822 184,822 324,381
Series A redeemable convertible
preferred StOCK ..o - - 13,712 - - -
Series B redeemable convertible
preferred StOCK ... - - - 203,249 203,249 222,812
Stockholders’ deficit. . (15,700) (18,369) (16,417) (96,686) (96,686) (241,049)
Stockholders’ deficit/Preferred stock............... $(15,700) $(18,369) $(2,705) $106,563 $106,563 $(18,237)

EBITDA consists of income (loss) before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. We have pro-
vided EBITDA because it is a measure of financial performance commonly used in the telecommunications
industry. Other companies may calculate it differently from us. EBITDA is not a measurement of financial per-
formance under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP. We do not believe you
should consider EBITDA as an alternative to net income {loss) as a measure of results of operations-or to
GAAP-based cash flow data as a measure of liquidity. Non-recurring charges represent a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle of $2,879,000 at December 31, 2000 and an extraordinary item for the early
extinguishment of debt of $2,431,000 at March 31,2000.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

QVERVIEW

Historically, our income consisted of agency revenues and telecommunications revenues. Agency revenues
consist of commissions we formerly earned as an agent of Bell Atlantic and other Regional Bell Operating
Companies, and long distance providers. Telecommunications revenues are generated by our sale of local, long
distance, data communications, Internet access and other communications services. As a result of our transi-
tion to an integrated communications provider, or ICP, in January 1898, agency commissions earned after
December 31, 1997 were not material.

Our financial information for the year ended December 31, 2007 reflects our fourth year of operations under
our new strategy. Our financial information for fiscal years ended on or before March 31, 1998 primarily reflects
our operations as an agent for Verizon. Because of our transition to a new strategy and our network buildout,
most of the financial information for March 31, 1998 and earlier does not reflect our current business and is not
comparable to results in subsequent periods.

RESULTS QF OPERATIONS

VEAR ENDED DECEWMBER 31, 2007 COMPARED TO

PRO FORWIA TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

At the Annual Meeting of our Board of Directors held on July 27, 2000, we changed our fiscal year from a
twelve month period ending March 31 of each year to a twelve month period ending December 31 of each
year. As a result, the pro forma year ended December 31, 2000 is the sum of the nine month transition period
ended December 31, 2000 and the quarter ended March 31, 2000.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 {“2001") were $299,438,000, an increase of 39% from
$215,278,000 for the comparable twelve month period of 2000 (“2000") due to an increase in access line
equivalents, or ALE's. As an integrated communications provider, revenues reflect our direct sales of local
telecommunications services in addition to our direct sales of other telecommunications services, including toll
and data services.

A common basis for measurement of an integrated communications provider's progress is the growth in ALEs.
ALEs are the total number of voice circuits and equivalent data circuits we have in service. Voice circuits are
the actual number of voice circuits purchased by our customers. We calculate our equivalent data circuits by
dividing the data transmission capacity purchased by our customers by 64 kilobits per second, which repre-
sents the capacity necessary 1o carry one voice circuit. During the year ended December 31, 2001, voice and
data ALEs in service increased by 135,700, or approximately 30%, from the year ended December 30, 2000.
This increase is a result of ALE’s from new customers and growth from existing customers. This brought total
ALEs in service to 589,000 at December 31, 2001.

Costs of telecommunications revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased 43% to
$240,519,000 for 2001 from $168,103,000 for 2000 as a result of the variable costs associated with increased
revenues and increased leased circuits associated with our PowerPath™ Network. As a percentage of telecom
munications revenue, costs of telecommunications revenues were 80% and 78% for 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, due to lower discounts and competitive pricing pressures on our off-net services offset in part by an
improvement in higher margins on our PowerPath™ Network.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 5% to $82,534,000 in 2001 from $78,875,000 for 2000.
This increase was primarily due to the variable costs, such as commissions, associated with the increased
revenues.

As of December 31, 2001, we had 708 employees including 173 sales executives and 174 network coordinators
in 26 branch locations throughout the Northeast and mid-Atlantic states as compared to 725 employees including
216 sales executives and 169 network coordinators in 30 branch locations at December 31, 2000.

Included in SG&A, we incurred charges of $700,000 and $3,110,000 in 2001 and 2000, respectively, for the
consolidation of collocation and branch office sites to reduce costs and maximize network efficiency through
optimal use of fiber deployment and to realize near term operating efficiencies through our branch sites.
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Depreciation and amortization expense increased 83% to $77,002,000 in 2001 from $41,989,000 in 2000. This
increase was a result of additional expense associated with the equipment and software relating to the net-
work deployment and the upgrade of our information systems. Network equipment and software is being
depreciated over 2-5 years, reflecting the risk of rapid technological change.

Interest and other expense increased 98% to $23,556,000 for 2001, as compared to interest and other
expense of $11,923,000 for 2000. The increase in interest expense is due to increased borrowings to fund our
operating losses and the deployment of our network.

NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEWVIBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO

PRO FORMA NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Total revenues for the nine months ended December 31, 2000 {“Transition 2000”) were $170,353,000, an
increase of 66% from $102,591,000 (restated for SAB 101 - see note 2 in consclidated financial statements) for
the comparable nine month period of 1999 (“Transition 1999").

During the quarter ended December 31, 2000, voice and data ALEs in service increased by 46,200, or approxi-
mately 11% from the quarter ended September 30, 2000. This brought our total ALEs in service to 453,300 at
December 31, 2000. Data ALEs increased by approximately 10% from the quarter ended September 30, 2000
to 98,000, or 22% of total ALEs in service as of December 31, 2000. Data ALEs at December 31, 2000 include
ALEs purchased by other carriers including Internet service providers.

Costs of telecommunications revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased 62% to
$133,196,000 for Transition 2000 from $82,076,000 (restated for SAB 101) for Transition 1999 as a result of our
increase in direct sales of local telecommunications services and expenses associated with our PowerPath®
Network. As a percentage of telecommunications revenue, costs of telecommunications revenues were 78%
and 80% for Transition 2000 and Transition 1999, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 56% to $63,421,000 in Transition 2000 from
$40,910,000 (restated for SAB 101) for Transition 1999. This increase was primarily due to the costs incurred in
opening additional branch sales offices and the associated increased number of sales, service and engineering
employees hired in connection with the transition to the ICP platform. As of December 31, 2000, we had 725
employees including 216 sales executives and 169 network coordinators in 30 branch locations throughout the
Northeast and mid-Atlantic states as compared to 496 employees including 194 sales executives and 119 net-
work coordinators in 28 branch locations at December 31, 1999.

We incurred a charge of $3,110,000 for the consolidation of collocation and branch office sites to reduce costs
and maximize network efficiency through optimal use of fiber deployment and to realize near term operating
efficiencies through our branch sites.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased 199% to $34,916,000 in Transition 2000 from $11,681,000 in
Transition 1999. This increase was a result of additional expense associated with the equipment and software
relating to the network deployment and the upgrade of our information systems. Network equipment and soft-
ware is being depreciated over 3-5 years, reflecting the risk of rapid technological change.

Interest and other expense increased 7% to $13,081,000 for Transition 2000, as compared to interest and other
expense of $12,246,000 for Transition 1999. The increase in interest expense is due to increased borrowings 1o
fund our operating losses and the deployment of our network. There was an increase in interest income to
$4,936,000 as a result of the proceeds of our Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock financing in
Transition 2000, as compared to interest income of $865,000 for Transition 1999.

We incurred a charge of $2,879,000 for the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle by adopting
Staff Accounting Builetin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” {SAB 101). See Note 2 to
consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

Working capital at December 31, 2001 was $21.0 million compared to $51.5 million at December 31, 2000, a
decrease of $31.5 million. Cash balances at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000 totaled $66,289,000
and $80,029,000, respectively, excluding restricted cash. The decrease in cash at December 31, 2001 is due to
cash used by operating and investing activities of $38.9 million and $75.0 miltion, respectively, partially offset
by cash provided by financing activities of $100.2 million.
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Accounts Receivable increased 9% from December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2001. This increase was less
than the 39% sales increase for the same period. Days sales outstanding improved from 62 days in the fourth
quarter of 2000 to 54 days in the fourth quarter of 2001,

During 2001, we used cash of $74.4 million to purchase property and equipment primarily to fund the continua-
tion of the buildout of our PowerPath® Network.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we entered into an equipment lease financing arrangement, which
restricts $7.5 million of cash as security for this arrangement.

During 2001, we borrowed the remaining $125 million under our TD Credit Facility. As of December 31, 20017,
the full $225 million of the TD Credit Facility has been utilized.

During 2001, we repaid $27.0 miliion of capital leases and notes payable.

Since September 30, 1998, we have entered into various lease and vendor financing agreements, which pro-
vide for the acquisition of equipment and software. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the aggregate amount
borrowed under these agreements was approximately $141.1 million and $100 million, respectively.

In May 2000, we completed a $200 million preferred stock financing with Bain Capital Inc. ($75 million),
Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. ($75 million) and CSFB Private Equity ($50 million). The investment consists of
8.25% Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock which converts into our common stock at $50 per
share at any time at the option of the holder. We may require conversion of the preferred shares if our com-
mon stock reaches certain levels. We may elect to redeem the preferred shares on the fifth anniversary of the
closing and all outstanding shares of preferred stock must be redeemed or converted by May 2010. The net
proceeds from the sale of the Series B redeemable preferred stock were used to fund strategic marketing and
technology initiatives of our business plan which include the purchase of dark fiber and optronics, PowerPaths*
Network expansion and new PowerPath®™ Network product and applications development.

In March 2000, TD Securities (U.S.) Inc. underwrote a $225 million senior secured credit facility (“TD Credit
Facility”) to fund our base plan for expansion of our branch sales offices and our PowerPath®™ Network. The
proceeds were used to retire the $43 million balance of a $75 million existing credit facility and to repay in full a
$25 million vendor financing facility. The TD Credit Facility includes a $50 million senior secured 7-1/2 year
revolving credit facility, a $100 million senior secured 7-1/2 year delayed draw term loan and a $75 million sen-
ior secured 8 year term loan. In March 2002, we amended the agreement covering our Senior Facility to
include new covenant levels as well as an increase in the interest rate grids. The Senior Facility provides for
certain financial and operational covenants, including but not limited to minimum access lines installed and bill-
able, minimum gquarterly revenue and operating cash flow, and maximum capital expenditures and other invest-
ments. At December 31, 2001, the Company was not in compliance with the covenants prior to the amend-
ment signed in March 2002. However, as of December 31, 2001, the Company is in compliance with all the
amended covenants. in connection with the amendment, the bank syndicate will receive common stock war-
rants, which could total 3.25% of our outstanding shares of common stock if warrants to purchase common
stock are issued in conjunction with the Company's March 2002 Vendor Finance Facility, as discussed in the
following paragraph. The issuance, terms and prices of the warrants are structured in the same manner as the
warrants issuable under the Vendor Finance Facility. As of December 31, 2001, the full $225 million of the TD
Credit Facility has been utilized.

In March 2002, we entered into an agreement with a vendor (“Vendor Finance Facility”), which an executive
officer thereof is on the Board of Directors of the Company, which restructures approximately $48 million in
outstanding capital leases. The leases have been restructured into 36 month leases beginning in March 2002.
There will be no principle or interest payments for the first six months and the leases will then be amortized
over the remaining 30 months. [n addition, subject to meeting the conditions for the financing, we will also
receive up to $40 million in capital lease financing from the finance subsidiary of this vendor for equipment pur-
chases in 2002 available in four separate tranches of $10 million each. These are available quarterly on the first
days of February, May, August and November 2002. For each new tranche of capital drawn, there are no pay-
ments required for the first six months, and then the leases will be amaortized over the next 30 months. This
additional capital is dependent upon our compliance with the conditions in the agreement, including compliance
with financial and operating covenants. These covenants are virtually the same as those in the amended TD
Credit Facility with an additional covenant relating to minimum unrestricted cash balance. Prior to each tranche
period, we must elect to utilize the financing tranche for that period or decline it and the remaining tranches. If
we elect to use a tranche, we will issue warrants before the beginning of the tranche period equal to 2% of our
outstanding common stock for the first $10 million, 1% of the then outstanding common stock for each of

18




tranches two and three, and 2.5% of the then outstanding common stock for the fourth tranche. The number
of shares of common stock outstanding for the first tranche is determined as of January 1, 2002. The second
through fourth tranches are determined as of the first day of the month immediately preceding the first day of
the tranche period. The initial warrants will be issued at an exercise price of $4.10. Subsequent warrants, if
issued, would be priced at the average of our stock price for the period from the 10th to the 14th trading days
of the month during which such warrants are issued.

We will continue to use the proceeds remaining from the TD Credit Facility and Series B redeemable convert-
ible preferred stock financing for general corporate purposes including capital expenditures, working capital and
operating losses associated with the continued deployment of our network and further penetration of our exist-
ing region throughout the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic states. Until utilized, the net proceeds from the TD Credit
Facility and Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock financing are being invested in short-term, inter-
est-bearing instruments and other investment-grade securities.

We believe that cash on hand and the amounts expected to be available under our Vendor Finance Facility will
be sufficient to fund our planned capital expenditures, working capital and operating losses for at least the next
12 months. We also believe that these sources fully fund the business plan described in our Business
Overview in Item 1. We can provide no assurance that if we require funds in addition to the funds made avail-
able through the TD Credit Facility, the preferred stock financing and the Vendor Finance Facility, such financing
will be available, or if available, on terms acceptable to us when needed. If we are unable to obtain such financ-
ing when needed, we may be required to postpone or abandon our development and expansion plans, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. The actual
timing and amount of our capital requirements may be materially affected by various factors, including the tim-
ing and actual cost of the network, the timing and cost of our expansion intc new markets, the extent of com-
petition and pricing of telecommunications services by others in our markets, the demand by customers for our
services, technological change and potential acquisitions.

The Company's covenants under its debt and vendor financing facilities (see Note 8) contemplate improve-
ments in the Company’s operating results in fiscal 2002 over 2001. Among other things, these covenants
require significant improvement in Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA), as
defined in the Senior Facility and the Vendor Financing Facility, (see Note 6). The Company'’s ability to remain in
compliance with the covenants is dependent upon the Company's continued execution of its business plan
which consists of the following primary initiatives; continued migration of existing offnet customers onto the
Company’s network, improving margins by reducing network costs of goods, {primarily by replacing leased net-
work facilities with owned and operated fiber facilities), controlling selling, general and administrative expenses
and continued revenue growth by adding new customers and selling new services. In the event that conditions
arise that do not allow the Company tc meet all of the primary initiatives of its business plan, management
expects to take all necessary actions to remain in compliance with its required covenants which may include
the reduction of certain operating expenses, migration of customers onto the Company's network and elimina-
tion of certain discretionary expenses. Management believes that if necessary, these actions could be imple-
mented to meet its covenants, including its EBITDA covenant.

DESCRIPTION OF SEMIOR SECURED FACILITY

TD Securities (U.S.) Inc. Facility

In March 2000, we entered into a $225 million senior secured credit facility with a consortium of banks. The TD
Credit Facility is comprised of a $50 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the "Revolver”) with a seven
and one-half year term, a $100 million senior, delayed draw term facility with a seven and one-half year term
(“Term A"} and a $75 million senior secured eight year term loan facility (“Term B"). As amended in March
2002, advances under the Revolver and Term A bear interest at either prime rate plus 2.25-3.5% per annum or
Londen interbank rate (“LIBOR") plus 3.25-4.5% per annum based upon the total leverage ratio in effect at the
time. Term B borrowings bear interest at the prime rate plus 3.75% per annum or LIBOR plus 4.75% per
annum. Borrowing at prime or LIBOR is at our discretion. As required by the TD Credit Facility, Term B borrow-
ings of $75 million were drawn down in full at the closing date along with borrowings of $25 million under the
Revolver. Part of the proceeds were used to pay off a $25 million vendor financing facility and the outstanding
balance of the existing credit facility revolving line of credit of approximately $43 million. We paid a one-time up
front fee and other closing costs, which have been capitalized as deferred financing costs and are being amor-
tized as interest expense over the term of the TD Credit Facility. The unamortized balance of deferred financing
costs associated with the previously existing credit facility were recorded as an extraordinary item in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2000.
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We will pay an annual commitment fee of .75-1.5% per annum, depending on the percentage of the total
Senior Facility used. At December 31, 2001, the entire $225 million was outstanding.

At June 30, 2003, we will begin to repay the outstanding balances of Term A and Term B on a quarterly basis
through the year 2007.

In September 2000, we entered into an interest rate collar agreement with a notional amount outstanding at
December 31, 2000 of $33 million, with an expected maturity date in the year 2003. The interest rate collar
effectively locks $33 million of the Senior Facility borrowings between 12.25% and 9.67%. In addition we have
an interest rate swap which effectively caps $17 million of borrowings at 10.75%. in December 2001 and
January 2002, we entered into two additional interest rate cap agreements of 6.5% maturing in October 2003
and September 2003 on $12.5 million and $50 million of borrowings, respectively.

In March 2002, we amended the agreement covering our TD Credit Facility to include new covenants as well
as an increase in the interest rate grids. The bank syndicate will receive common stock warrants, which could
total 3.26% of our outstanding shares of common stock. The issuance, terms and prices of the warrants are
structured in the same manner as the warrants issuable under the Vendor Finance Facility.

The TD Credit Facility provides for certain financial and operational covenants, including but not limited to mini-
mum access lines instalied and billable, minimum guarterly revenue and operating cash flow, and maximum
capital expenditures. We have also agreed, among other things, not to assume any other secured debt other
than capital leases, agree to a merger, sell our assets or declare dividends without the consent of the lenders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. (See note 2 to the financia! statements). We believe the following represent
our critical accounting policies:

REVENUE RECOGNITION

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in

Financial Statements (SAB 101), as amended by SAB 101A and 101B. SAB 101 requires that four basic criteria

must be met before revenue can be recognized: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery !
has occurred or services rendered; (3) the fee is fixed and determinable; and (4) collectability is reasonably
assured. We use historical data to estimate a provision for any sales allowances. Historically our provisions for
allowances have remained relatively constant as a percentage of sales. We do not believe different assump-
tions would lead to materially different amounts recorded. {f our experience were to change in the future, we
may have to adjust our provision accordingly.

ALLOWARGE FOR BAD DEBT

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our cus-
tomers to make reguired payments. We use current evidence of collectability and historical data to estimate
this provision. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at the lower of cost or fair market value less accumulated depreciation. Our
policy requires capitalization of all direct costs associated with acquiring and installing an asset to perform its
intended use and expensing of all costs relating to the ongoing operations and maintenance of the PowerPaths"
Network. Significant internal resources are utilized in the buildout of our PowerPath® Network and have been
capitalized as a component of property and equipment. The process of providing a connection between our
customers and our PowerPath®™ Network requires that we lease a customer specific last mile circuit. We capi-
talize the cost of this circuit while we install it to our asset at our customer’s location. Once telecommunica-
tions traffic can flow over the circuit, usually within a month, these circuit lease costs are expensed. Our policy
incorporates estimates, assumptions and judgments by management relative to the capitalized costs and useful
lives of all property and equipment, including the PowerPath®™ Network and related assets. We believe the
judgments and estimates we have used to date result in an accurate recording of our property and equipment.
Changes in business conditions in the future may lead to changes in our judgments and estimates.
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DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS

We utilize derivative financial instrument transactions in the form of interest rate swap, collar and cap agree-
ments to hedge variable rate interest risk. The effective portion of the hedge is recorded in other comprehen-
sive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a derivative's change in
fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings. Changes in market conditions could impact the amount of
derivative change in fair value that is recognized in earnings. The assessment of hedge effectiveness is made
guarterly. Changes in market conditions could affect the assessment of hedge effectiveness. Hedges that are
not deemed to be highly effective would result in changes in fair value for the entire hedging instrument to be
recognized in earnings.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations”
(FAS 147) and Statement No. 142, “"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (FAS 142). FAS 141 eliminates the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business combinations except for qualifying business combina-
tions that were initiated prior to July 1, 2001. FAS 141 further clarifies the criteria to recognize intangible assets
separately from goodwill. The requirements of Statement 141 are effective for any business combination
accounted for by the purchase method that is completed after June 30, 2001. Under FAS 142, goodwill and
indefinite lived intangible assets are no longer amortized but are reviewed annually (or more frequently if impair-
ment indicators arise) for impairment. Separable intangible assets that are not deemed to have an indefinite life
will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. The amortization provisions of Statement 142 apply to
goodwill and intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001. With respect to goodwill and intangible assets
acquired prior to July 1, 2001, companies are required to adopt FAS 142 in their fiscal year beginning after
December 15, 2001. For the intangible assets acquired on or before June 30, 2001 the intangibles will be amor-
tized during this transition period until adoption of FAS 142, We are not expecting any material impact from the
adoption FAS 1471 and FAS 142 on our financial position and results of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” (FAS 143}, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associ-
ated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. It also applies
the legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from acguisition, construc-
tion, development and (or} the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees.
The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002 (January 1, 2003 for the Company), with
earlier application encouraged. We believe the adoption of FAS 143 will not have a material impact on our finan-
cial position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (FAS 144), which addresses the financial accounting and report-
ing for the impairment of long-lived assets. This statement supercedes Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of” and the accounting and reporting provisions for the disposal of a segment of a business of APB
Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” The provisions of
this statement are effective for the financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. We believes that the adop-
tion of FAS 144 will not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

ADOPTION OF STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN 101.

We have revised our revenue recognition policy for certain recurring monthly fees to be consistent with applica-
ble provisions of Staff Accounting Bulletin 101, “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB 101").
Previously, monthly recurring fees for the next month’s service were recognized at the time all of our signifi-
cant performance obligations had been fulfilled and the related monthly service fee became nonrefundable
based on the terms of the contract with our customers which require 60 days notice for cancellation.

Since SAB 101 now indicates that nonrefundability of revenues and fulfillment of all significant performance
obligations are not a basis for revenue recognition, we have determined that deferral of the monthly recurring
service fees to the period in which the service is available to the customer is a preferable method of account-
ing. The impact of the change in recognizing recurring service fees was reported as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle as of April 1, 2000 in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
20, “Accounting Changes”. The cumulative effect of this change increased our loss by approximately $2.9 mil-
lion as of April 1, 2000. This amount represents the income attributable to the deferral, as of that date, of one
month's recurring service fee revenue totaling approximately $10 million. The previously reported quarterly
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financial information for the nine month transition period ended December 31, 2000 has been restated so that
annuzl operating results for the transition period are presented on the new basis.

There is no impact to our cash flow from operations as a result of this change. Also, the adoption of this
change in accounting for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 or prior périods did not have a material effect on
the our previously reported results of operations, financial position or cash flows for those periods.

ITEM 74. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABQUT MARKET RISK.

Qur exposure to financial risk, including changes in interest rates, relates primarily to outstanding debt obliga-
tions. We utilize our senior secured credit facility to fund a substantial portion of our capital requirements. This
facility bears interest at a variable interest rate, which is subject to market changes. Our earnings are affected
by changes in short-term interest rates as a result of our borrowings under the TD credit facility. The TD Credit
Facility interest payments are determined by the outstanding indebtedness and the prime or LIBOR rate at the
beginning of the period in which interest is computed. As required under the TD Credit Facility, we utilize inter-
est rate swap, cap and collar agreements to hedge varigble rate interest risk on 50% of the TD Credit Facility.
All of our derivative financial instrument transactions are entered into for non-trading purposes.

Notional amounts outstanding at December 31, 2001 subject to the interest rate collar is $33 million, with an
expected maturity date in the year 2003. The interest rate collar effectively locks $33 million of our TD credit
facility borrowings between 12.25% and 9.67%.

Notional amount outstanding at December 31, 2001 subject to the interest rate swap is $17 million, with an
expected maturity date in the year 2003. The interest rate swap effectively caps $17 million of our TD credit
facility borrowings at 10.75%. In December 2001 and January 2002, we entered into two additional interest
rate cap agreements of 6.5% maturing in October 2003 and September 2003 on $12.5 and $50 million of bor-
rowings, respectively.

For purposes of specific risk analysis we use sensitivity analysis to determine the impacts that market risk
exposure may have on the fair value of our outstanding debt obligations. To perform sensitivity analysis, we
assess the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical changes in interest rates on market sensi-
tive instruments, considering the hedge agreements noted above. We compare the market values for interest j
risk based on the present value of future cash flows as impacted by the changes in the rates. We selected dis-
count rates for the present value computations based on market interest rates in effect at December 31, 2001.
We compared the market values resulting from these computations with the market values of these financial
instruments at December 31, 2001, The differences in the comparison are the hypothetical gains or losses
associated with each type of risk. As a result of our analysis we determined at December 31, 2001, with
respect to our variable rate debt obligations, a 10% increase in interest rates with all other variables held con-
stant would result in increased interest expense and cash expenditures for interest of approximately $1.3 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2001. A 10% decrease in interest rates would result in reduced interest
expense and cash expenditures of approximately $85,000 for the same period taking into consideration the
interest rate collar as noted.

For purposes of specific risk analysis we use sensitivity analysis to determine the impacts that market risk expo-
sure may have on the fair value of our cutstanding fixed rate redeemable convertible preferred stock. To perform
sensitivity analysis, we assess the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical changes in dividend
rates on market sensitive instruments. We compare the market values for dividend risk based on the present
value of future cash flows as impacted by the changes in the rates. We selected discount rates for the present
value computations based on market dividend rates in effect at December 31, 2001. We compared the market
values resulting from these computations with the market values of these financial instruments at December 31,
2001. The differences in the comparison are the hypothstical gains or losses associated with each type of risk.
As a result of our analysis we determined at December 31, 2001, with respect to our fixed rate redeemable con-
vertible preferred stock, a 10% increase in dividend rates with all other variables held constant would result in
increased dividends of approximately $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. A 10% decrease in
dividend rates would result in reduced dividends of approximately $1.9 million for the same period.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Index to Financial Statements, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data begin on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART 101

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT™

Our executive officers and directors are as follows:

Name

Current Office Held

Robert J. Fabbricatore
Steven P. Milton
John D. Pittenger

Thomas Fabbricatore
Anthony D. Vermette
Frederick Kunzi
Jeffrey C. Lavin
Russell Ofiver

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
President and Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President-Finance and
Administration, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

Vice President-Business Systems

Vice President-Sales

Vice President and Chief Technology Officer
Vice President—Corporate Development
Vice President—Network Operations

Katherine D. Courage Director
Henry Hermann Director
Kevin J. Maroni Director
J. Richard Murphy Director
Mark E. Nunnelly Director
Carl Redfield Director
Richard J. Santagati Director
Ralph C. Sillari Director
Scott M. Speriing Director
Ralph S. Troupe Director

Robert J. Fabbricatore, a founder of the Company and a director since its inception in 1980, became
Chairman of the Board of Directors in March 1983 and served as President from October 1993 to August 1995.
Robert J. Fabbricatore is the brother of Thomas Fabbricatore, Vice President-Business Systems.

Steven P. Milton has been employed by the Company since 1984 and has served as President and Chief
Operating Officer since August 1995. Prior to that, he held various positions within the Company incfuding
Branch Manager, District Manager, Regional Manager and Vice President-Sales and Marketing.

John D. Pittenger has served as Chief Financial Officer since April 14, 19399, as Executive Vice President—
Finance and Administration since April 1998 and as Treasurer and Secretary of the Company since August
1989. Mr. Pittenger served as Vice President—Finance from 1991 until April 1998, and as Chief Financial Officer
from 1989 to April 1998.

Thomas Fabbricatore has been employed by the Company since 1982 in a number of positions. He was
named Vice President—Business Systems in 1989. Thomas Fabbricatore is the brother of Robert J.
Fabbricatore.

Anthony D. Vermette has been employed by the Company in a variety of positions since 1987. Mr. Vermette
was named Vice President-Sales in 1996.

Frederick Kunzi joined the Company as a Vice President and Chief Technology Officer in August 19388. Mr.
Kunzi has over 25 years experience in information technology. From 1985 to September 1998, he was
employed by Digital Equipment Corporation, most recently as Senior Manager, Global Network Services where
he was responsible for Digital's worldwide enterprise network infrastructure.

Jeffrey C. Lavin joined the Company in June 1998 as Vice President—-Corporate Development. Mr. Lavin has 20
years of sales and operational management experience in the telecommunications industry. From December
1996 to May 1998, Mr. Lavin was Vice President of Sales, Americas/Asia Pacific for NovaSoft Systems, Inc., a
software development corporation. From 1978 to 1996, Mr. Lavin was employed by Comlink Incorporated, a
communications network integrator, most recently as Senior Vice President. Following the acquisition of
Comlink in 1996 by Williams Communications, Mr. Lavin serve as Vice President and General Manager of
Network Systems Integration.
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Russell Oliver joined the Company in October 1999 as Vice President—-Network Operations. From 1985 to 1996,
Mr. Oliver was employed by by Comlink Incorporated, a communications network integrator, most recently as
Vice President of Operations. Following the acquisition of Comlink in 1996 by Williams Communications, Mr.
Oliver served as Vice President of Network Systems Integration, where he was responsible for network systems
integration throughout North America. From September 1998 to October 1999, Mr. Oliver was employed by
LaVigne as Vice President of Operations. Mr. Oliver serves on the Board of Directors of BICSI, a non-profit asso-
ciation that promotes standards and education throughout the telecommunications industry.

Katherine D. Courage became a director of the Company in April 1999. Ms. Courage is a managing director in
the Global Telecornmunications and Media Group in the Investment Banking Department of Credit Suisse First
Boston, one of the underwriters of our earlier common stock offerings. Prior to joining Credit Suisse First
Boston in September 1996, Ms. Courage worked at Salomon Brothers Inc. for ten years where she was a man-
aging director in the Global Telecommunications Group. Ms. Courage currently serves as a director of NorthEast
Optic Network, Inc. Credit Suisse First Boston Equity Partners, L.P., as a Series B preferred stockholder, has
appointed Ms. Courage as its designee to the Company's Board of Directors.

Henry Hermann, CFA, became a director of the Company in September 1996. Since November 1997, he has
operated Hermann Companies, a financial services company. Mr. Hermann is registered as an Investment
Advisor with the State of Texas, a Chartered Financial Analyst and, as an independent contractor, offers general
securities through SWS Financial. Mr. Hermann has been a NASD Board of Arbitrators Member since 1991.

Kevin J. Maroni joined the board in April 1998. Mr. Maroni is a Managing General Partner of Spectrum Equity
Investors, a leading private equity firm focused on communications companies with $2.9 billion under manage-
ment. Prior to Spectrum, Mr. Maroni worked at Time Warner, Inc. and Harvard Management Company. Mr.
Maroni currently sits on several private company boards. He holds an MBA from Harvard University and a AB
from the University of Michigan.

J. Richard Murphy became a director of the Company in August 1995, Mr. Murphy is a managing director of
Atlantic Management Company Incorporated (AMC), a Portsmouth, a New Hampshire valuation, investment
banking and financial advisory firm that has been serving New England's business, legal and financial communi-
ties since 1968. Prior to joining AMC in January 2002, Mr. Murphy was a managing director of Baldwin &
Clarke Corporate Finance, Inc., a Bedford, New Hampshire investment banking firm which he joined August
1999. Mr. Murphy was the director of the Corporate Advisory Group of Moody, Cavanaugh and Company, LLP,
a North Andover, Massachusetts public accounting firm, from April 1996 to August 1999.

Mark E. Nunnelly became director of the Company in June 2000 as a designee of Bain Capital, Inc. He joined
Bain Capital as a General Partner in 1990 and has served as Managing Director since April 1993. Mr. Nunnelly
also serves on the Board of Directors of Domino's, DoubleClick, Modus Media International, and Eschelon
Telecom. Mr. Nunnelly received an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School and a B.A. from Centre College.

Carl Redfield became a director of the Company in January 1999. He has been Senicr Vice President,
Manufacturing and Logistics of Cisco since February 1997. From September 1993 to February 1997 he was
Vice President of Manufacturing. Mr. Redfield also is a director of VA Linus Systems, Inc., iBasis Inc. and
Broadwing, Inc.

Richard J. Santagati became a director of the Company in September 1991. He has been the President of
Merrimack College in North Andover, Massachusetts since 1994. From March 1992 to February 1994, Mr.
Santagati was the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President of Artel Communications
Corp., a publicly held data communications firm located in Hudson, Massachusetts. Mr. Santagati also serves
as a director of Celerity Solutions, Inc., a software company.

Ralph C. Sillari became a director of the Company in October 1997. Since 1991, Mr. Sillari has been employed
by Fleet National Bank where he is currently an Executive Vice President, Manager of Regional Banking.

Scott M. Sperling became a director of the Company in May 2000 as a designee of Thomas H. Lee Company.
He has been a Managing Director of Thomas H. Lee Company since July 1994 and is also President of TH Lee,
Putnam Capital, Trustee of THL Equity Trust Il and Managing Director of THL Equity Advisors IV, LLC. Mr.
Sperling is currently a Director of Fisher Scientific International, Inc., GenTek, inc., Safelite Glass Corp.,
LiveWire Systems LLC, Wyndham International, GoodHome.com and several private companies. He holds an
MBA degree from Harvard University and a B.S. from Purdue University.
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Ralph S. Troupe became a director of the Company in May 1999. In October 1999, Mr. Troupe co-founded
Callisma (formerly known as Rt.1 Solutions), a network services company focusing on all key aspects of com-
plex network planning, design and implementation, and serves as its President and Chief Executive Officer.
From January 1993 to October 1999, Mr. Troupe was employed by international Network Services, most
recently as Vice President of North American Field Operations, East. Mr. Troupe holds a B.S. degree from
Northeastern University and is a 1998 graduate of the Harvard Business School Advanced Management
Program for International Senior Managers.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION*

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT*

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS*

*The balance of the information required by ltem 10 of Part Il of this Annual Report, and Items 11 through 13
of Part Ill of this Annual Report are incorporated by reference to the corresponding items in our definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in April 2002.
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PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

{a) The following documents are filed as part of this report;

{1} Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2001,
the nine months ended December 31, 2000 and the year ended March 31, 2000.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

for the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months

ended December 31, 2000 and the year ended March 31, 2000

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended

December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000

and the year ended March 31, 2000

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{2) Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Financial statement schedules not included have bheen omitted because of the absence of conditions under
which they are required or because the required information, where material, is shown in the financial state-
ments or notes.

{3) Exthibits:
The following Exhibits are either filed herewith or have heretofore been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and are referred to and incorporated herein by reference to such filings.

Exhibit No. Title

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation {11)

3.2 Certificate of Designation for Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (5)

3.3 Amended and Restated By-Laws (11)

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate {3)

10.1 1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended (1)

10.2 1993 Stock Option Plan (3)

10.3 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (2)

10.4 Lease for premises at 360 Second Ave., Waltham, MA (3)

10.5 Sublease for premises at 360 Second Ave., Waltham, MA (3)

108 Lease for premises at 110 Hartwell Ave., Lexington, MA {3}

10.7 Lease for premises at 120 Broadway, New York, NY (3)

10.8 Agreement dated February 1, 1996 between NYNEX and CTC Communications Corp. (3)

10.9 Agreement dated May 1, 1997 between Pacific Bell and CTC Communications Corp. (3)

10.10 Agreement dated January 1, 1996 between SNET America, Inc. and CTC Communications Corp. (3)

1011 Agreement dated June 23, 1995 bhetween IXC Long Distance Inc. and CTC Communications Caorp., as amended (3)

10.12 Agreement dated August 19, 1996 between Innovative Telecom Corp. and CTC Communications Corp. (3)

1013 Agreement dated October 20, 1994 between Frontier Communications

10.14 Agreement dated January 21, 1997 between Intermedia Communications In¢c. and CTC Communications Corp. {3)

10.16 Securities Purchase Agreement dated April 10, 1998 among CTC Communications Corp. and the Purchasers named therein (4)
1017 Registration Rights Agreement dated April 10, 1998 among CTC Communications Corp. and the Holders named therein (4)
10.18 Form of Warrant dated April 10, 1998 (4)

10.19 Loan and Security Agreement dated as of September 1, 1998 by and between CTC Communications Corp., Goldman Sachs Credit

Partners L.P. and Fleet National Bank (6)

10.20 Agreement with Cisco Systems Capital Corp. dated as of October 14, 1998 (7)

10.21 Warrant dated July 15, 1998 issued to Spectrum (8)

10.22 L.ease for premises at 220 Bear Hill Rd., Waltham, MA (8}

10.23 Warrant dated September 1, 1998 issued to Goldman Sachs & Co. (8)

10.24 Warrant dated September 1, 1998 issued to Fleet National Bank (8)

10.25 1998 Incentive Plan, as amended (1)

10.26 Loan Agreement dated as of March 15, 1999 by and between CTC Communications Corp, TD Dominion (Texas), Inc. & TD
Securities(USA), Inc.(9)
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10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31

10.32**
10.33%*
10.34
10.35
10.36
10.37

23
27
99

Warrant dated March 24, 1999 issued to Toronto Dominion (Texas), Inc. (9)

1999 Equity Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (1)

Series B Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of March 22, 2000. (5)

Series B Preferred Stock Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 22, 2000. (5)

Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of September 30, 1999 among CTC Communications Corp., Fleet
National Bank and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P. {12}

Dark Fiber IRU Agreement between Williams Communications, Inc. and CTC Communications Corp. dated as of March 31, 2000 (13}
Carrier Services Agreement between Williams Communications, Inc. and CTC Communications Corp. dated as of March 31, 2000 (13)
$225 Million Credit Agreement with TD Securities {USA) Inc. and the other parties to the agreement dated as of March 30, 2000 {14}
Lease for premises at 115-125 Bear Hill Rd., Waitham MA 02451{14}

2000 Flexible Stock Plan (13)

Fourth Amendment dated as of February 27, 2002 to Credit Agreement with TD Securities (USA) Inc. and the other parties to the
agreement dated as of March 30, 2000 (++)

Consent of Emst & Young LLP (++)

Financial Data Schedule (++)

Risk Factors (++)

++ Filed herewith.

(n
(2)

(10
(1)
(12)

{13)
(14)

Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 3-8 (File No. 333-83735).
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form 8-8 (File No. 33-44337).
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10K for the Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 1987,

Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 1998.
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 19, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 2, 1998.
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 6, 1998.
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant's Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-777089).
Incorporated by reference to an Appendix filed as part of the Registrant’s Schedule 14A {Amendment No. 2) filed on June 4, 1999,
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 1, 1999,
Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit filed as part of the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-44002).
Incorparated by reference to an exhibit filed as part of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the ning months ended
December 31, 2001.

** PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN OMITTED PURSUANT TO A REQUEST FOR
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT

{2) REPORTS ON FORM 8-
The Company filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the guarter ended December 31, 2001:

Date

[tems Reported

October 2, 2001. Announcement that Fiber Access and Packet Based Dial Tone and Voice Services Available

to Maine Customers

October 23, 2001.  Announcement that (1) we have applied for a U.S. patent on our Intergrated

Communications System, or PowerPath™ network and (2) the Wall Street Transcript has
published an in-depth interview with Robert J. Fabbricatore, our Chairman and CEO.

October 31, 2001 Anncuncement of results for the quarter ended September 30, 2001.
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SIGNATURES

PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934, THE REGISTRANT HAS DULY CAUSED THIS REPORT TO BE SIGNED ON TS BEHALF BY THE UNDER-
SIGNED, THEREUNTO DULY AUTHORIZED ON THIS 31st DAY OF MARCH, 2002.

CTC Communications Group, Inc.

By: /s/ Robert J. Fabbricatore

Robert J. Fabbricatore,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, THIS REPORT
HAS BEEN SIGNED BELOW BY THE FOLLOWING PERSONS ON BEHALF OF THE REGISTRANT IN THE
CAPACITIES AND ON THE DATES INDICATED:

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

Chairman of the Board March 31, 2002
/s/Robert J. Fabbricatore and Chief Executive
Robert J. Fabbricatore Officer, Director

Chief Financial Officer March 31, 2002
/s/ John D. Pittenger and Chief Accounting
John D. Pittenger Officer

/s/ Katherine D. Courage
Katherine D. Courage Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Henry Hermann
Henry Hermann Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Kevin J. Maroni
Kevin J. Maroni Director March 31, 2002

/s/ J. Richard Murphy
J. Richard Murphy Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Mark E. Nunnelly
Mark E. Nunnelly Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Carl Redfield
Carl Redfield Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Richard J. Santagati
Richard J. Santagati Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Ralph C. Sillari
Ralph C. Sillari Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Scott M. Sperling
Scott M. Sperling Director March 31, 2002

/s/ Ralph S. Troupe
Ralph S. Troupe Director March 31, 2002
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and related information
for CTC Communications Group, Inc. appearing in this report. Management believes that the consolidated
financial statements fairly reflect the form and substance of transactions and that the consolidated financial
statements reasonably present CTC Communications Group, Inc.’s financial position and results of operations in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Management has also included
in the consolidated financial statements amounts that are based on estimates and judgments which it believes
are reasonable under the circumstances.

The independent auditors audit the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and provide an objective, independent review of the fairness of
reported operating results and consolidated financial position.

The Board of Directors of CTC Communications Group, Inc. has an Audit Committee composed of four non-man-
agement directors. The Committee meets periodically with financial management and the independent auditors
to review accounting, control and financial reporting matters applicable to CTC Communications Group, Inc.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

THE BOARD QF DIRECTORS AND STOCKKOLDERS

CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CTC Communications Group, Inc., as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
{deficit), and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000 and
the year ended March 31, 2000. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 14{a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting princi-
ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of CTC Communications Group, Inc. at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and
the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine
manths ended December 31, 2000 and the year ended March 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

ém%sf“ g LLP
/.

Boston, Massachusetts

February 15, 2002, except for Note 6
and the last paragraph of Note 7,

as to which the date is March 6, 2002
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CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Currant assats:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - current
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of

$6,915,598 and $4,501,672 in December 2001 and 2000, respectively.........ccccvreririivriniiiivenene
Prepaid commissions
Prepaid expenses and other current assets....
Notes receivable from executives............
Amounts dUe from @MPIOYEES. ... .oiiiiiiiiriii i e ettt e

TOTA) CUITENT BSSEES .oiviiveies ettt et ettt ettt ekttt
Property and equipment:

Property 8N SQUIDMIEBMT ..ot oottt e
Accumulated depreciation and amMOrtiZAtION ..........icoiiieiiiei e e et

Total property and BQUIDIMENT, MET ..ot e e e et e
Restricted cash - noncurrent

Deferred financing costs, net of amortization
OB BSSEES .t e e e

0Tl BSSEES .. ittt et ettt e h e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable to related party
Accrued salaries and related TAXES ... .....coie oo e e
Current portion of obligations under capital I88SeS .......c..coocoeviiiiiii i
Current portion of NOTES PAYADIE ... .o e et e

Total current EDIHITIES ..o e e e
Long term liabilities:

Obligations under capital feases, net of current portion
Notes payable, net of current portion ......

Total 1ong term Habilities ..o e e e e
Commitments and contingencies:

Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share;

authorized 10,000,000 shares, 200,000 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively {liquidation

preference $255,546,343 at December 31, 200T) ..o oo
Stoclkholders’ deficit:

Common stock, par value $.07 per share; authorized 100,000,000 shares,

27,103,730 and 26,582,137 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2007 and 2000, reSPECHIVEIY c..oiviiiiiii ittt e
AAItional PAILHIN CAPIEN ... e e e e
Deferred compensation
Other accumulated comprehensive loss
RETAIMEU ETICIT. 1ot eee et e oot ea ettt et

Total STOCKNOIAETS  AEFICH .. ..o ovie ettt e e e e s

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit ..o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2081 2080
$66,289,140 $80,029,442
550,000 -
47,059,065 43,137,423
2,200,000 2,518,995
1,186,850 1,030,603
1,217,281 6,375,135
158,561 212,304
118,660,897 133,303,202
366,087,446 259,615,413
(135,762,149} (63,873,598}
230,325,297 195,741,815
6,950,000 -
6,124,749 6,403,413
5,377,382 8,679,463
$367,438,325 $344,128,593
$56,657,154 $48,716,754
1,641,525 744,796
2,995,383 3,282,079
33,036,325 27,055,850
3,354,399 1,983,984
97,684,786 81,783,463
60,324,538 52,763,576
225,000,000 103,018,583
2,665,710 -
287,990,248 165,782,165
222,812,360 203,249,272
271,037 265,821
95,528,040 93,300,483
- (26,910)
(2,886,424) -
(333,961,722) (190,225,701)
(241,049,069 (96,686,307)
$367,438,325 $344,128,593




CTC COMMUNICATICONS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, March 317,
2001 2080 s
TeleCommUNICETIONS TEVENUES ...ocoo oottt e $299,438,481 $170,352,695 $1563,100,934
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of telecommunications revenues
(excluding depreciation and amortization) ..........c.cvceieiiivrieinnircn e 240,518,899 133,196,099 119,585,548
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . 82,534,316 63,421,022 56,676,773
Depreciation and amortization ..............c.ocieieiriniieser e e 77.002,257 34,918,209 18,753,667
Total operating Costs and EXPENSES .......coceviieieiiicri it 400,055,472 231,533,330 195,015,988
LOSS FrOM OREIAtIONS. ..cii oot (100,616,991) (61,180,635} (41,915,054)
Other income (expense):
INTEIEST INCOMIE ©oiiiic et et e e e e e 2,873,314 4,935,575 996,283
INEEIEST @XPEMSE ..it ittt ettt ettt b e et e (26,1739,255) (13,081,070) 116,162,835}
Other iNCOME (EXPENSE) .....viiir ittt et (250,000) - 8,519
Total OthEr EXPENSE Locvi i e e {23,555,941) (8,145,495) (15,158,033}
Loss before extraordinary item and cumulative
effect of change in accounting prinGiple ... (124,172,932) (69,326,130) (67,073,087)
Extracrdinary item - early extinguishment of debt ... - - (2,430,456)
Loss before the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........ (124,172,932) (69,326,130) (59,503,543)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..o - (2,878,949) ~
NET LOSS 1ttt e ($124,172,932) ($72,205,079) ($59,503,543)
Net loss available to common stockhoIders. ..., ($143,736,021). ($83,722,079) ($61,112,894)
Loss per common share excluding extraordinary item and
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:
Basic and DUt .......c.ocv i ($5.34) ($3.08) ($2.89)
Loss per common share before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle: Basic and Diluted....... . ($5.34) ($3.08) ($3.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..o - 0.11) -
Net loss per common share: Basic and Diluted.......ocooovviviiioiiinenic ($5.34) ($3.19) {$3.01)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing -
net loss per common share: Basic and Diluted ... 26,903,518 26,249,173 20,320,626
Pro forma amounts assuming the accounting change is applied retroactively:
Loss before extraordinary item ($124,172,932) {$69,326,130) ($57.814,190)
Net loss ($124,172,932) ($69,326,130) ($60,344,646)
Net (0SS Per COMMON ShaAIG........c.ociii oot ($5.34) ($3.08) ($3.05)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHCLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Common Stock Additional Retained Amount
Paid-In Deferred Earnings Treasury Due From

Shares Par Value Capital Compensation {Deficit) Stock Stockholders Total
Balance at
March 31, 1999, 10,352,513 $103,5625 $8,386,816 $(212,410) $(45,390,732) - $(31,025)  $(37,143,826)
Issuance of stock
pursuant to employee
stock purchase plan................... 16,875 163 183,465 ~ - - - 183,634 g
Exercise of employee :
StOck OPLIONS ..oevvvieviiire 1,339,979 13,400 7,179,737 ~ - - - 7.193,137
Issuance of common stock ........ 4,025,000 40,250 61,758,528 - - - - 61,798,778
Issuance of common
stock due to stock split............... 7,740,882 77,408 (77,408) - - - - -
Noncash stock
COMPENSAtION ..ocoeerviririr e 10,503 106 2,456,934 - - - - 2,457,039
Acquisition of ' :
treasury stock oo - - - - - $(3,484,121) - (3,494,121}
Retirement of
treasury S1OCK .covvivriiiiiive e (88,834) (838) (3,493,233) - ~ 3,494,121 - -
Deferred compensation............. - - - 108,000 ~ - - 106,000
Receipt of amounts due .
from stockholders....................... - - - - ~ - 31,025 31,025

Accretion of offering costs

related to Series A

convertible preferred stock......... - - - - {112,600} - - (112,000)
Accretion of warrants

related to Series A

convertible preferred stock......... - - - - (296,888} - - {296,888)
Preferred stock dividend............. - - - - {1,200,459) - - {1,200,459)
Conversion of Series A

convertible preferred

stock to common stock ............. 2,376,660 23,767 14,257,181 - ~ - - 14,280,948
Net loSS. i - - - - (59,503,543) - - (59,503,543)
Balance at

March 31, 2000, 25,773,578 257,736 90,652,020 (106,410} {106,503,622) - - (15,700,2786)

Issuance of stock
pursuant to employee

stock purchase plan................... 5,689 57 135,341 - - - - 135,398
Exercise of employee

StOCK OPLIONS «o.viviceie s 938,733 9,387 4,499,809 - - - - 4,509,196
Acquisition of

treasury StOCK ...oooovviriiiie - - - - - (1,988,046) - (1,988,046)
Retirement of

treasury StOCK .o..ovevvriviiiiienen (185,863) (1,359) (1,986,687) - - 1,988,046 - -
Deferred compensation.............. - - - 9,500 - - - 79,500

Accretion of offering
costs related to Series B
redeemable convertible

preferred stock ..o - - - - (1,033,466) - - {1,033,466)
Preferred stock dividend - - - - (10,483,534) - - (10,483,534)
Net 0SS - - - - (72,205,079) - - (72,205,079)
Balance at

December 31, 2000.........cc.ocee.. 26,582,137 $265,821 $93,300,483 $ (26,910 $(190,225,701) - - $(96,686,307)

(table continued on next page)
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CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(table continued)
Common Stoclc Additional Retained Other
Paid-in Deferred Earnings Treasury  Comprehensive

Shares Par Value Capital Compeansation (Deficit) Stock Income Total
Balance at
December 31, 2000..........c.oco..... 26,582,137 $265,821 $93,300,483 $(26,910) $(190,225,701) - - $(96,686,307)
Issuance of stock
pursuant to employee
stock purchase plan.................... 132,120 1,321 401,169 - - .- - 402,490
Exercise of employee 4
stock options ... 404,062 4,041 1,817,775 - - - - 1,821,816
Acquisition of
treasury StoCk......c..cvvves cerveninnan - - - - - $(91,533) - (91,833)
Retirement of
treasury stock .......cocooiiiiiieninnn (14,589) (146) (91,387) - - 91,5633 - -
Deferred compensation ............. - - - 26,910 - - - 26,910
Stock options issued
to outside consultant .................. - - 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Accretion of offering
costs related to Series B
convertible preferred stock......... - - - - (1,653,546) - - (1,653,546)
Preferred stock dividend............ - - - - (17,909,543) - - {17,909,543)
Unrealized loss on
derivative instruments ................ - - - - - - (2,886,424} (2,886,424)
NEtI0SS...cviiierieririt e - - - - (124,172,932) - - (124,172,932)
Comprehensive 0SS ............c...... - - - - - - - (127,059,356}
Balance at
December 31, 2001 ..o $27,103,730 $271,037 $95,528,040 - $(333,961,722) - $(2,886,424) $(241,049,069)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months
Year Ended Ended Yeer Ended
December 31, December 31, WMarch 31,
2091 2008 2008
Operating Activities:
NEEIOSS 1. ivriiiie ittt ettt et an e $(124,172,932) $(72,205,079) $(59,503,543)
Adjustiments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by (used injeperating activities:
Extraordinary item-early extinguishment of debt ...l - - 2,430,456
Depreciation and amortization 77,002,257 34,916,209 18,753,667
Interest related to warrants and certain fees. . 679,312 704,671 2,754,556
Provision for doubtful 8CCOUNTS......coiiiriir e e 4,123,921 2,950,521 1,528,564
Stock-based COMPENSALION ..., 126,910 79,500 2,563,039
Gain on sale of property and QUIDMENT ...........c.ccoovriereiicirinee e - (247,740) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (8,045,5863) (6,122,609) (22,292,968)
Prepaid COMMUISSIONS ....ooiiiieiiiiieee e e e 318,995 (478,513) 459,518
Prepaid expenses and other current @sSetS....c...oooivvveeiiiiiiiee e, (158,247) 406,448 (414,853)
Amounts due from employees................ . 53,743 (113,804) (42,928)
Income 1axes receivable... ... - - 2,313,070
Deferred financing costs and Other @SSets ......c..oooviviiiiieeie e 2,650,231 (8,429,486) (5,247,944}
Accounts payable and accrued EXPENSES ... ivviieririeie e 8,837,129 3,132,793 18,889,269
Accrued salaries and related taxXesS. ..o v (286,696) 799,279 826,433
Net cash used by operating activities ........c.ccoceviieiiiieiiniceni e (38,868,940) (44,607,790) (36,983,664}
Investing Activities:
Additions to property and eQUIPMENT.......cciiiiiiieiir e s, (74,425,034) (73,554,572) (41,667,211)
RESHIHCIEA CASN ... it et {7,500,000) - -
Proceseds from dispaositions of property and equipment. . 1,734,115 247,740 -
Deposits for property and equipMent .......o..oocooiiiiiee i - - (2,053,900)
Repayments of notes receivable from stockholders. ... 5,414,676 - -
Notes receivable from stockholders ..., (256,822) (6,375,135) -
Net cash used in investing aCtiviti®S .......cccocoviirreiie i, (75,033,065) (78,681,967) (43,721,111}
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of Series B
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, net of offering costs.............. -~ 191,732,271 -
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 2,132,773 2,656,548 65,681,228
Amounts due from stockholders, net......... -~ - 31,025
Borrowings under notes payable 125,000,000 25,000,000 185,165,892
Repayment of notes payable. ..., (1,697,618) (26,074,674) (147,996,587)
Repayment of capital lease obligations..........c.ccoceieiiviiiiceie e (25,273,452) (9,088,102) (4,337,885)
Net cash provided by financing activities ........c.oo.ooieiiiiiioe e e 100,161,703 184,226,043 98,543,673
Increase in cash and cash equUIVAIENTS ... {13,740,302) 59,936,286 17,838,898
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........c..ocoeeviiiiianinins 80,029,442 20,093,156 2,254,288
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ..........cccorriiiiin i, $66,289,140 $80,029,442 $20,093,166
Supplementa! disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid FOr INtBrEST .....o.coiiiiiiie i et $24,285,376 $11.617.264 $13,408,279

Cash received for income taxes ...
Moncash investing and financing activities:

Receipt of common stock in exercise of stock options.........ccococvieiien $91,633
Network and related equipment acquired under capital leases $41,103,288
Netwaork and related equipment acquired under notes payable -
Conversion of Series A Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock 10 COMMON STOCK ..o -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$362,615

$(2,463,571)
$3,494,121
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CTC COMMUNICATIONS GRQUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company

CTC Communications Group, Inc., through its whally-owned operating subsidiary, CTC Communications Corp.
(the “"Company"”) is an integrated communications provider (*ICP"), which offers voice and data services pre-
dominantly to medium and larger-sized business customers in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic states. Prior to
becoming an ICP in January 1998, the Company, since 1984, had been a sales agent for Verizon (formerly Bell
Atlantic). The Company has also offered long distance and data services under its own brand name since 1994.
In January 1999, the Company began deploying a packet-switched network in its existing markets. The
Company operates in a single industry segment providing telecommunication service to medium and larger-
sized business customers.

As the Company continues to deploy its network, further penetrates its existing region and expands into new
markets throughout the Boston-Washington, D.C. corridor, the Company will need significant amounts of addi-
tional capital. The Company believes that proceeds available from the preferred stock financing described in Note
9, the senior-secured facility described in Note 6, cash on hand and the amounts expected to be available under
its bank and lease financing arrangements will be sufficient to fund its planned capital expenditures, working cap-
ital and operating losses for at least the next 12 months. We also believe that the above noted sources fully fund
our business plan. During this period the Company may seek to raise additional capital through the issuance of
debt or equity securities, the timing of which will depend on market conditions. The Company may also seek to
raise additional capital through vendor financing, equipment lease financing or bank loans.

There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on terms acceptable to the Company when
needed or if at all. The agreements governing its existing indebtedness limit its ability to obtain debt financing.
If the Company is unable to obtain financing when needed, it may delay or abandon its development and
expansion plans which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial
condition. The actual timing and amount of its capital reguirements may be materially affected by various fac-
tors, including the timing and actual cost of the network, the timing and cost of its expansion into new mar-
kets, the extent of competition and pricing of telecommunications services by others in its markets, the
demand by customers for its services, technological change and potential acquisitions.

The Company’s covenants under its debt and vendor financing facilities (see Note 6) contemplate improve-
ments in the Company’s operating results in fiscal 2002 over 2001. Among other things, these covenants
require significant improvement in Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA), as
defined in the Senior Facility and the Vendor Financing Facility, (see Note 8). The Company’s ability to remain in
compliance with the covenants is dependent upon the Company’s continued execution of its business plan
which consists of the following primary initiatives; continued migration of existing offnet customers onto the
Company’s network, improving margins by reducing network costs of goods, (primarily by replacing leased net-
work facilities with owned and operated fiber facilities), controlling selling, general and administrative expenses
and continued revenue growth by adding new customers and selling new services. In the event that conditions
arise that do not allow the Company to meet all of the primary initiatives of its business plan, management
expects to take all necessary actions to remain in compliance with its required covenants which may include
the reduction of certain operating expenses, migration of customers onto the Company’s network and elimina-
tion of certain discretionary expenses. Management believes that if necessary, these actions could be imple-
mented to meet its covenants, including its EBITDA covenant.

2. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CTC Communications Group, Inc.
and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. Certain
amounts in the prior years have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

At the Annual Meeting of the Company's Board of Directors held on July 27, 2000, the Company changed its
fiscal year from a twelve month period ending March 31 of each year to a twelve month period ending
December 31 of each year. The consoclidated financial statements include presentation of the nine month transi-
tion period beginning April 1, 2000, and ending December 31, 2000.
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The following table presents certain financial information for the twelve months ended December 31, 2001,
December 31, 2000 (restated for SAB 101 as discussed below), and March 31, 1999, respectively.

Twelve months ended

December 31, December 31, Wlarch 31,
2 2030 2000
(Unaudited)

TelecomMmMUNICAIONS TEVENUB .........oivociitie et $299,438,481 $216,278,467 $153,100,934

Costs of telecommUNICations FEVENUE ........c.oivviiirie e 240,518,899 168,103,119 119,685,548
{excluding depreciation and amortization)

LOSS from OPEratioNS... ..o et (100,616,891} (73,688,504) (41,915,054)

Net loss . (124,172,932} (90,920,874} (59,503,543}

Net loss per share, basic and diluted ... $(5.34) $(4.05) $(3.01)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash
equivalents.

The Company has entered into an equipment lease financing arrangement which restricts $7.5 million of cash
as security for this arrangement. At December 31, 2001, other non-current assets include $6.9 million of this
restricted cash and the balance of $550,000 is reflected as current restricted cash.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its
customers to make required payments.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at the lower of cost or fair market value less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. The Company accounts for internal use software under the provisions of AICPA Statement of
Pasition 98-1 "Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use” ("SOP
98-1"). Capitalization of costs commences when the preliminary project stage, as defined under SOP 98-1, is
completed. Amortization on a straight-line basis, commences at the point that the software components have
been subjected to all significant testing phases and are substantially complete and ready for their intended use.
The Company also capitalizes certain external and internal costs associated with the installation of network
equipment. A significant portion of the network and related equipment costs is subject to the risk of rapid tech-
nological change. Accordingly, the Company’s useful lives reflect this risk. Depreciation and amortization is pro-
vided using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Furniture, fixture, vehicles and equipment ............c....c.. 3-7 years
Network and related equipment ..o 2-5 years
Fiber-related equipment ..o 3-5 years
BUIKING c.o o 14 years
BT o 16 years

Leasehold improvements and assets under capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the lease term or the
useful life of the property, usually 3-5 years.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of" ("SFAS No. 121"), the
Company reviews its long-lived assets, including property and equipment, and identifiable intangibles for impair-
ment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
fully recoverable. To determine recoverability of its long-lived assets, the Company evaluates the probability that
future undiscounted net cash flows will be less than the carrying amount of the assets. Impairment is meas-
ured at fair value.

Collocation Agreements

The Company annually reviews its collocation agreements based on its current fiber deployment strategy and in
2000 concluded that it no longer required zll of the collocation sites originally planned enabling a consolidation of
collocation sites. Conseguently, the collocation consolidation resulted in a $700,000 and $2.4 million accrual of
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collocation termination costs and write-off of deposits as a component of general and administrative expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2001, and the nine months ended December 31, 2000, respectively.

Revenue Recognition
Telecommunication revenues primarily relate to customer usage of services and recurring monthly fees to cus-
tomers for certain other services. Revenues related to usage are recognized as usage accrues.

Retroactive to April 1, 2000, the Company revised its revenue recognition policy for certain recurring monthly
fees to be consistent with applicable provisions of Staff Accounting Bulletin 101, “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements™ ("SAB 101"). Previously, monthly recurring fees for the next month’s service were rec-
ognized at the time all of the Company's significant performance obligations had been fulfilled and the related
monthly service fee became nonrefundable based on the terms of the Company’s contract with its customers.
The new method of accounting defers recognition of monthly recurring service fees to the period in which the
service is available to the customer. The cumulative effect of the change resulted in a charge to income of
$2,879,000 which is included in the net loss for the nine months ended December 31, 2000. The effect of the
change on the nine months ended December 31, 2000, was to increase the loss before the cumulative effect
of the accounting change by $1,018,000 ($0.04 per share).

For the three months ended June 30, 2000, the Company recognized $9,649,000 in revenue that was included
in the cumulative effect adjustment as of April 1, 2000. The effect of that revenue in the first quarter of 2000
was to increase income by $2,506,000 during that period.

Deferred Financing Costs

In connection with certain financing arrangements, the Company capitalized $719,527, $3,971,577 and
$3,099,424 of financing costs during the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December
31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, respectively. These costs represent professional and debt origi-
nation fees. The financing arrangements are being amortized over the lives of the agreements. Due to the early
extinguishment of the fiscal 1999 financing arrangements, the unamortized balance of the deferred financing
costs and unamortized value of the warrants relating to those agreements were recognized as an extraordinary
expense item in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine
months ended December 31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, the Company recorded amortization,
excluding the extraordinary expense item, of $998,191, $667,588 and $1,743,958, respectively, related to
deferred financing costs associated with the various financing arrangements.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes under the liability method prescribed by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences
of differences between the tax and financial accounting bases of assets and liabilities at each year end.
Deferred income taxes are based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which
the differences are expected to affect taxzble income (loss). Valuation allowances are established when neces-
sary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

Income (Loss) Per Share

The Company's income f{loss) per share information is prepared in conformity with SFAS No. 128 "Earnings per
Share” ("SFAS No. 128"). SFAS No. 128 replaced the calculation of primary and fully diluted earnings per share
with basic and diluted earnings per share. Unlike primary earnings per share, basic earnings per share excludes
any dilutive effects of options, warrants and convertible securities. Diluted earnings per share is similar to the
previously reported fully diluted earnings per share.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk principally consist
of cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable. Until utilized, the net proceeds from the TD credit facility
and Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock financing are being invested in short-term, interest-bearing
instruments and other investment-grade securities which minimizes the concentration of credit risk with
respect to cash and cash equivalents. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 was minimized by the large number of customers across New England and New
York State. The Company reduces its risk of loss through periodic review of customer creditworthiness and
generally does not require deposits. From a supplier standpoint, the Company has a large concentration of
recurring expenditures to Verizon primarily as a result of resale services.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company is required to disclose the fair value of financial instruments. At December 31, 2001 and 2000,
the Company's financial instruments consist of cash, cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued expenses, notes payable and interest rate swap and collar agreements. The fair value of these
financial instruments, excluding the notes payabie and interest rate swap and collar agreements, approximates
their cost due to the short-term maturity of these financial instruments, Of the $228,354,399 total notes
payable, the carrying value of $225,000,000 approximates fair value due to the variable interest rates on the
Note. The carrying value of the remaining notes payable of $3,354,399 are not materially different than their
estimated fair value. The fair value of the interest rate swap and collar represent liabilities to the Company of
$1,196,201 and $1,469,509, respectively, at December 31, 2001. The fair value of the cap at December 31,
2001 is immaterial.

Significant Estimates and Assumptions i
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and ligbilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant estimates and assumptions made by management affect the Company’s aliowance for doubtful
accounts and certain accrued expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting for Stock Options

The Company grants stock options for a fixed number of shares to employees with an exercise price at least
equal to the fair value of the shares at the date of the grant. The Company has elected to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” ("APB No. 25") and related inter-
pretations in accounting for its employee stock options. Under APB No. 25, because the exercise price of the
Company's employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no
compensation expense is recognized. Stock options and other stock-based awards to non-employees are
accounted for based on the provisions of SFAS No. 123 and E{TF 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That
Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services”. During
the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company granted stock options to outside consultants to purchase an
aggregate of 40,000 shares of its common stock. These options have exercise prices ranging from $3.06 to
$4.28. As of December 31, 2001, 30,000 of these options have vested and a cost of $100,000 has been
recorded to the general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Leases

Leases, in which the Company is the lessee and which transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of
ownership to the Company, are classified as capital leases. Accordingly, assets and liabilities are recorded at
amounts equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the
leased property or equipment at the beginning of the respective lease terms. Interest expense relating to the
lease obligations is recorded to effect constant rates of interest over the terms of the lease. Leases which do
not meet capital lease criteria are classified as operating leases and the related rentals are charged to expense
as incurred.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB} issued Statement No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, and its Amendments, FASB Statements Nos. 137 and 138, in
June 1999 and June 2000, respectively {collectively, FAS 133). FAS 133 requires the Company to recognize all
derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value
through income. If the derivative is-designated and qualifies as a hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge,
changes in the fair value of derivatives are either offset against the change in fair value of assets, liabilities, or
firm commitments through earnings (fair value hedge), or, for the effective portion of the hedge, recorded in
other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings (cash flow hedge). The ineffective
portion of a derivative's change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings. The Company adopted
FAS 133 on January 1, 2001. The adoption of this statement resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment to other
comprehensive income (loss) of ${716,504), (see Note 12).

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

As required by the Company’s credit facility with TD Securities (US) Inc. {the TD Credit Facility), the Company
maintains an interest rate collar and an interest rate swap. These instruments hedge the variable rate of inter-
est due on the TD Credit Facility. The interest rate collar effectively locks $33 million of the TD Credit Facility

borrowings between 12.25% and 9.67%. The interest rate swap effectively caps $17 million of the TD Credit
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Facility borrowings at 10.75%. Both the collar and the swap mature on September 22, 2003. .. Der
2007 and January 2002, the Company entered into two interest rate cap agreements of 6.5% maturi
October 2003 and September 2003 on $12.5 million and $50 million of the TD Credit Facility borrowings,
respectively. All of these instruments have been entered into for non-trading purposes.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company recorded a loss of $(716,504) in other comprehensive
income (loss) as a cumulative effect adjustment in connection with the adoption of FAS 133, effective January
1, 2001. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company recorded a loss of $(1,949,206) in other
comprehensive income (loss) for the change in fair value of the collar, swap and cap outstanding at December
31, 2001. Furthermore, during the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company reclassified out of other com-
prehensive income (loss) to interest expense a loss of $(29,937) related to the ineffective portion of the collar
and the swap and gain of $250,651 for the same period related to the time value deterioration on the collar,
(see Note 12).

For the period from January 1, 2002, to December 31, 2002, the Company expects to reclassify approximately
$(1,840,000) of losses on the collar, the swap and interest cap agreements from accumulated other compre-
hensive income (loss) to interest expense due to the payment of variable interest associated with the TD
Credit Facility.

Segment Information
The Company operates in a single industry segment and manages its business as one operating segment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations”
(FAS 141) and Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (FAS 142). FAS 141 eliminates the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting for business combinations except for qualifying business combina-
tions that were initiated prior to July 1, 2001, FAS 141 further clarifies the criteria to recognize intangible assets
separately from goodwill. The requirements of Statement 141 are effective for any business combination
accounted for by the purchase method that is completed after June 30, 2001. Under FAS 142, goodwill and
indefinite lived intangible assets are no longer amortized but are reviewed annually (or more frequently if impair-
ment indicators arise) for impairment. Separable intangible assets that are not deemed to have an indefinite life
will continue to be amortized over their useful lives., The amortization provisions of Statement 142 apply to
goodwill and intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001. With respect to goodwill and intangible assets
acquired prior to July 1, 2001, companies are required to adopt FAS 142 in their fiscal year beginning after
December 15, 2001. For the intangible assets acquired on or before June 30, 2001 the intangibles will be amor-
tized during this transition period until adoption of FAS 142. The Company is not expecting any material impact
from the adoption FAS 141 and FAS 142 on its financial position and results of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” (FAS 143), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associ-
ated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. It also applies
the legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from acquisition, construc-
tion, development and (or) the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obligations of lessees.
The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002 (January 1, 2003, for the Company),
with earlier application encouraged. The Company believes the adoption of FAS 143 will not have a material
impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 144, "Accounting for the
impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (FAS 144), which addresses the financial accounting and reporting
for the impairment of long-lived assets. This statement supercedes Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”
and the accounting and reporting provisions for the disposal of a segment of a business of APB Opinion No. 30,
“Reporting the Results of Operations = Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. “ The provisions of this statement are
effective for the financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim peri-
ods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The Company believes that the adoption of FAS 144
will not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.
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3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPWIENT
Property and equipment, at cost, and related accumulated depreciation
and amortization balances are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2001 2080

Furniture, fixtures, vehicles and equipment $ 11,497,228 $ 5,922,131
Network and related equipment .............. 149,680,065 115,141,984
Leasehold improvements.............. 40,187,598 21,170,502
Fiber and related equipment 28,412,779 17,627,621
ASSES UNGEY CAPILE) IBASE .ovviiiiii e e e e 136,309,786 99,753,175
366,087,446 258,615,413

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ..........c.cccoi i e 135,762,149 63,873,598

$230,325,297 $195,741,815

Assets under capital lease principally consist of $93,482,053 of network and related equipment, $27,043,528 of
fiber related equipment, $4,098,152 of furniture and fixtures, and $11,686,053 of building and leasehold
improvements. Amortization expense of capital lease assets is included in depreciation expense. Capitalized
interest of $5,172,698 and $3,659,000 were recorded in the year ended December 31, 2001, and the nine
months ended December 31, 2000, respectively.

4, RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The installation of certain telecommunications equipment and certain related activities are generally subcon-
tracted to a company in which the Chairman of the Company is the major shareholder. In addition, equipment is
purchased from this company. Amounts paid to this company for hardware and services, based on fair market
value, aggregated $11,374,050, $3,928,713 and $1,361,430 during the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine
months ended December 31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, respectively. Amounts payable to this
company were $1,641,525 and $744,796 at December 31, 20071 and 2000, respectively.

The Company leases office space from a trust in which the Chairman is a beneficiary. Rent expense for these
facilities aggregated $51,584, $38,688 and $51,584 during the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine
months ended December 31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, respectively. The lease expires during
fiscal 2002.

The Company subleases space to a company controlled by the Chairman of the Company. Terms of the sub-
lease are identical to those included in the Company's lease. Sublease rental income totaled $131,073,
$100,862 and $108,326 during the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31,
2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, respectively.

In May 2000, the Company entered into a 15 year lease for approximately 71,250 feet from a limited liability
company in which two executive officers, including the Chairman, own a majority of membership interests, and
in which three executive officers each own a minority membership interest. The payments under this lease
were $1,933,508 and $1,162,982 for the year ended December 31, 2001, and the nine months ended
December 31, 2000. The Company has funded a security deposit of $889,050 as of December 31, 2001.
During the nine months ended December 31, 2000, the Company funded an escrow account guarantee for this
lease in the sum of $2.5 million which was repaid with interest to the Company during the year ended
December 31, 2001. This lease has been accounted for as a capital lease. The Company has recorded capital
lease obligations to this related party of $10.0 million at December 31, 2007 and 2000. The limited liability com-
pany has a mortgage on the building at December 31, 2001 of $9,233,575.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had advanced funds to certain stockholders, who are execu-
tives and officers, amounting to $1,217,281 and $6,375,135, respectively, evidenced by fully secured promis-
sory notes. These notes bear interest at 10.75%. During March 2001, $5,414,676 was repaid together with
interest due. in February 2002, the Company advanced $545,243 to two executives that have been secured
fully byspromissory notes bearing interest at 10.75%.
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5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2001 2000

Trade accounts payable and accrued telecommunication COStS.......coovieiireioiieeinnn $51,137,700 $41,174,477
Sales taX PAYADIE ..o 4,789,078 7,209,500 -

Other CCTUBA BXPEMSES ..o ittt et e ettt 2,371,901 1,077,573

$58,298,679 $49,461,550

6. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

In September 1998, the Company entered into an agreement providing for a revolving line of credit agreement
{the “Revolving Line of Credit”) with a consortium of lenders, providing for a three year senior-secured credit
facility of up to $75,000,000. Advances under the Revolving Line of Credit were subject to interest at the prime
rate plus 1.75% per annum. The outstanding debt was secured by all the Company's assets excluding those
acquired through purchase money financing. The Company paid a one-time up front fee which was capitalized
as a deferred financing cost and amortized as interest expense over the term of the Revolving Line of Credit.
Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,461,618 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price
of $4.50 per share were issued to the lenders in connection with the transaction. The fair value of the warrants
of $1,909,848 was amortized and included in interest expense over the term of the Revolving Line of Credit.
Borrowings under the Revolving Line of Credit were repaid from the senior-secured credit facility obtained in
March 2000 and described below. The unamortized balance of deferred financing costs associated with the
Revolving Line of Credit were recognized as an extraordinary item for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000.

In March 2000, the Company entered into a $225 million senior-secured credit facility {the “Senior Facility”)
with a consortium of banks. This Senior Facility is comprised of a $50 million senior-secured revolving credit
facility (the “Revolver”) with a seven-and-one-half-year term, a $100 million senior, delayed draw facility with a
seven-and-one-half-year term ("Term A") and a $75 million senior-secured eight-year term loan facility (" Term
B"). This facility is secured by all assets of the Company excluding those assets used to secure other notes
payables and capital leases. As amended in March 2002, advances under the Revolver and Term A bear interest
at either prime rate plus 2.25-3 5% per annum or London interbank rate ("LIBOR") plus 3.25-4 5% per annum
based upon the total leverage ratio in effect at the time. Term B borrowings bear interest at the prime rate plus
3.75% per annum or LIBOR plus 4.75% per annum. Borrowing at prime or LIBOR is at our discretion. As
required by the Senior Facility, Term B borrowings of $75 million were made at the closing date along with bor-
rowings of $25 million under the Revolver. The proceeds were used to pay off an existing $25 million vendor
financing facility and the outstanding bzlance of the revolving line of credit approximating $43 million. The
Company paid a one-time up front fee and other closing costs at the closing, which have been capitalized as
deferred financing costs and are being amortized as interest expense over the term of the Senior Facility.

We will pay an annual commitment fee of .75-1.5% per annum, depending on the percentage of the total
Senior Facility used. At December 31, 2001, the entire $225 million was outstanding.

At June 30, 2003, we will begin to repay the outstanding balances of Term A and Term B on a gquarterly basis
through the year 2007.

In September 2000, we entered into an interest rate collar agreement with a notional amount outstanding at
December 31, 2000, of $33 million, with an expected maturity date in the year 2003. The interest rate collar
effectively locks $33 million of the Senior Facility borrowings between 12.25% and 9.67%. In addition we have
an interest rate swap which effectively caps $17 million of borrowings at 10.75%. In December 2001 and
January 2002, we entered into two additional interest rate cap agreements of 6.5% maturing in October 2003
and September 2003 on $12.5 million and $50 million of borrowings, respectively.

These interest rate collar, swap and cap agreements expose the Company to losses in the event the counter
party is unable to perform under the contracts. The risk of nonperformance is low due to the credit worthiness
of the counter party.

In March 2002, we amended the agreement covering our Senior Facility to include new covenant levels as well
as an increase in the interest rate grids. The Senior Facility provides for certain financial and operational
covenants, including but not limited to minimum access lines installed and billable, minimum quarterly revenue
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and operating cas* flow, and maximum capital expenditures and other investments. At December 31, 2001, the
Company was not 11: compliance with the covenants prior to the amendment signed in March 2002, However,
as of December 31, 2001, the Company is in compliance with al! the amended covenants. In connection with
the amendment, the bank syndicate will receive common stock warrants, which could total 3.25% of our out-
standing shares of common stock (if warrants to purchase common stock are issued in conjunction with the
Company's March 2002 Vendor Finance Facility, as discussed in the following paragraph). The issuance, terms
and prices of the warrants are structured in the same manner as the warrants issuable under the Vendor
Finance Facility.

In March 2002, we entered into an agreement with a vendor (“Vendor Finance Facility”), which an executive
officer thereof is on the Board of Directors of the Company, which restructures approximately $48 million in
outstanding capital leases. The leases have been restructured into 36 month leases beginning in March 2002.
There will be no principle or interest payments for the first six months and the leases will then be amortized
over the remaining 30 months. In addition, subject to meeting the conditions for the financing, we will also
receive up to $40 million in capital lease financing from the finance subsidiary of this vendor for equipment pur-
chases in 2002 available in four separate tranches of $10 million each. These are available guarterly on the first
days of February, May, August and November 2002, For each new tranche of capital drawn, there are no pay-
ments required for the first six months, and then the leases will be amortized over the next 30 months. This
additional capital is dependent upon our compliance with the conditions in the agreement, including compliance
with financial and operating covenants. These covenants are virtually the same as those in the amended Senior
facility with an additional covenant relating to minimum cash balance. Prior to each tranche period, we must
elect to utilize the financing tranche for that period or decline it and the remaining tranches. If we elect to use a
tranche, we will issue warrants before the beginning of the tranche period equal to 2% of our outstanding com- ;
mon stock for the first $10 million, 1% of the then outstanding common stock for each of tranches two and w
three, and 2.5% of the then outstanding common stock for the fourth tranche. The number of shares of com-

mon stock outstanding for the first tranche is determined as of January 1, 2002. The second through fourth

tranches are determined as of the first day of the month immediately preceding the first day of the tranche

period. The initial warrants will be issued at an exercise price of $4.10. Subsequent warrants, if issued, would

be priced at the average of our stock price for the period from the 10th to the 14th trading days of the month

during which such warrants are issued.

Notes payable, net of the unamortized discount of related warrants, consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2081 2000

SEMOT FACHIY ..ottt e e . $225,000,000 $100,000,000
Notes payable for network and related equUIPMENT ........ccovorriiieniccrior e 3,354,399 5,002,573

$228,354,399 $105,002,573
LSS CUITENT DOTLION ...ce ittt et e e e e (3,354,399} {1,983,984)

$225,000,000 $103,018,589

Long-term debt matures as follows:
Year ending December 31:

2002 3,354,399
2003. 11,812,600
2004 27,000,000
2005. 36,375,000
2006 .. 43,875,000
2007 82,312,500
2008 23,625,000

$228,354,399
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7. LEASES

The Company leases office facilities under long-term lease agreements classified as operating leases. The fol-
lowing is & schedule of future minimum lease payments, net of sublease income, for operating leases as of
December 31, 2001:

Sublease

Operating Rental
Leases Income Net

Year ending December 31:

2002 3,499,567 {144,933) 3,354,634
2003. 2,961,084 (109,212) 2,851,872
2004. 2,252,200 (81,909) 2,170,291
2005. 1,122,295 - 1,122,295
2006 . 1,019,362 - 1,019,362
Thereafter 2,609,095 - 2,609,095
Net future minimum 18858 PAYMENTS . ...ovoii i, $13,463,603 $(336,054) $13,127,549

Rental expense for operating leases aggregated $4,591,838, $2,918,127 and $2,470,340 for the year ended
December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, respec-
tively, Sublease rental income amounted to $131,073, $100,862 and $108,326 for the year ended December
31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, respectively.

For the nine months ended December 31, 2000, the Company reserved $700,000 for future lease obligations
of branch locations that were consolidated to achieve near term operating efficiencies. As of December 31,
2001, the Company has a reserve balance of $269,092 outstanding.

The Company leases certain assets, principally network and related equipment, fiber related equipment and
buildings, under capital leases. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company has capitalized leased equip-
ment totaling $136,309,786 and $99,753,175, respectively, with related accumulated amortization of
$28,935,304 and $18,767,228 for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the nine months ended December
31, 2000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2001, obligations under capital leases mature as follows:

Year ending December 31;

2002 e e $ 43,351,581
2003... 6,524,216
2004 ... 17,301,458
2005 et e 4,342,288
2008 .. et e e 3,849,090
TEIBATIRT .o iie it et e 47,517,226

152,985,860
Less amount representing INTErEST ...t e e et (59,624,997)
Present value of minimum 18aSe PaYMENTS ..ot ioiiein e 83,360,863
Less current portion of obligations under capital 18aSeS ..o, (33,036,325)
Obligations under capital leases, net of current Portion............ccoocevivieincn e $60,324,538

In March 2002, we entered into an agreement with a vendor, (see note 6) which restructures a portion of the
above capital leases outstanding. We expect this restructuring to reduce our cash outflow in 2002 by approxi-
mately $7.5 million for the leases outstanding at December 31, 2001. This restructuring is not included in the
table above. Under the agreement, these payments will now be due during the years ending December 31,
2008, 2004 and 2005.
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8. TELECOWIMUNICATIONS AGREEMIENTS

On October 20, 1994, the Company entered into a four-year non-exclusive agreement with a leng-distance serv-
ice provider for the right to provide long distance service to the Company's customers at fixed prices during the
term of the agreement. On September 6, 2000, the Company entered into an amendment that extended the
initial term of the agreement through April 2003. In December 2001, the Company entered into an amendment
which reduced its minimum aggregate usage commitment to $36 million. Based upon existing and expected
usage, these provisions had no effect on the financial statements for the twelve months ended December 31,
2001. Through December 31, 2001, the Company had incurred expenditures of approximately $54.8 million
under these agreements.

On January 8, 1999, the Company entered into agreements with two communications companies for the provi-
sion of transmission and collocation facilities for the Company'’s initial network build-out in New England and
New York State. The agreements, which total $11.6 million of expenditures by the Company over three years,
provide for connectivity between the Company’'s 22 network hub sites and two fully redundant network opera-
tions centers. Through the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company had incurred expenditures of approxi-
mately $18.5 million under these agreements.

In fiscal years 1999 and 2000, the Company entered into an amendment that revised the original terms of the
Company’s resale agreements with a supplier of local services. The Amendment provides for several additional
discounts on various resold services if certain term and volume commitment levels associated with access
lines and Minutes of Use {(MOUs)} are maintained. While the Company exceeded its commitment levels in fiscal
year 2001 relative to the number of access lines and MOUs, there is currently some uncertainty as to whether
the Company met a commitment level in certain jurisdictions associated with one of the smaller discount per-
centages under the agreement. The Company and its suppliers are currently considering revising the terms
associated with this discount percentage.

On Mearch 31, 2000, the Company entered into a 20 year agreement to purchase an exclusive, indefeasible
right of use of optical dark fibers from a fiber optic engineering and construction company. The agreement also
includes collocation facilities at points of presence and transmission site locations and ongoing fiber mainte-
nance services provided by the supplier. The Company'’s total estimated commitment is approximately $115
million. Through December 31, 2001, the Company had incurred expenditures of approximately $12 miliion
under this agreement.

On May 9, 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with a professional services company for the
"softswitch” and related software required to support local services of the Company for a total commitment of
approximately $26 mitlion through the end of 2005. Through December 31, 2001, the Company had incurred
costs of $15.1 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company finalized negotiations of a local interconnection agree-
ments which the Company intends to execute in all states within its footprint. It is the Company's current
intention to use the negotiated agreement in new markets within its footprint and as a replacement agreement
for expiring agreements in Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island and
Vermont. These agreements enable the Company to interconnect with the public switched telephone network
{PSTN), obtain access to unbundled network elements (UNEs), collocate in the incumbent local provider's cen-
tral offices, and purchase other miscellaneous additional services also provided by the incumbent for purposes
of providing local dial tone and associated local services over the Company's network facilities.

9. STOCKNOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)

In connection with the reorganization of the Company into a holding company structure in September 1999,
each share of Common Stock, $.01 par value, and each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $1.00
par valug, of CTC Communications Corp., was converted into one share of Common Stock, $.01 par value, and
one share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $1.00 par value, of CTC Communications Group, Inc. {“CTC
Group™). CTC Group is authorized to issue up to 100 million shares of common stock, $.01 par value, and 10

million shares of preferred stock, $1.00 par value. As a result of the reorganization, CTC Communications Corp.

became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTC Group.

On March 17, 2000, the Company effected a three-for-two stock split for stockholders of record as of March 6,
2000. All common stock information presented in Note 9 herein has been adjusted to reflect the stock spilit.

At December 31, 2001, 14,178,735 shares of common stock are reserved for future issuance upon exercise of
outstanding stock options and common stock purchase warrants and conversion of outstanding preferred stock.
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Preferred Stock
The dividends; Liguidation Preference, voting rights and other rights of each series of preferred stock, when
issued, are to be designated by the Board of Directors prior to issuance.

In May 2000, the Company completed a $200 million preferred stock financing with Bain Capital Inc., Thomas
H. Lee Partners, L.P. and CSFB Private Equity, consisting of 8.25% Series B redeemable convertible preferred
stock which converts into common stock at $50 per share. The 8.25% dividends are cumulative and are
payable in cash or upon conversion or redemption, at the Company’s option, as discussed below.

Bain Capital and Thomas H. Lee each invested $75 million and CSFR Private Equity has invested $50 million.

The Company may require conversion of the preferred shares, into the Company's common stock, if the aver-
age market price of the common stock of the Company equals or exceeds 200% of the conversion price for a
period of 30 consecutive trading days or if there are outstanding fewer than 15% of the number of shares
issued on the closing date. In the event the Company elects to require conversion of the preferred stock under
this provision, the Company is required to convert the principal and cumulative dividends that would otherwise
have been payable through the third anniversary ($55.5 million or $13.89 per share) or through the date of con-
version, whichever is greater (the “Liguidation Preference”), at $50 per share. The value ($55 million) related to
this contingent conversion is recognizable at the time the conversion occurs.

The Company may elect to redeem the preferred shares on or after the fifth anniversary of the closing. The
redemption price per share is equal to the greater of the Liquidation Preference or the current market value of
the number of shares of common stock into which a share of preferred stock could be converted by the holder
on the redemption date.

To the extent the Company has funds available, on the tenth anniversary of the closing date the Company is
required to redeem all outstanding shares of the Series B Preferred Stock, if any, at a redemption price per
share equal to the greater of (a) the Liguidation Preference as of that date, and (b} the current market value of
the number of shares of Common Stock into which a share of Preferred Stock could be converted by the
holder as of that date. The redemption price is payable, at the Company’s option, in cash or in shares of
Common Stock, which shares are to be valued at 95% of the average market price, as defined, if redeemed for
cash and 100% of the average market price, as defined, if redeemed for stock.

The holders of the shares of Series B Preferred Stock have the right at any time and from time to time, at the
holder’s option, to convert any or all outstanding shares (and fractional shares) of Series B Preferred Stock plus
cumulative dividends into fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock.

Holders of Series B stock are entitled to a number of votes equal to the whole number of common stock they
would receive if they converted their Series B stock.

Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends on our common stock and does not plan to do so in the foresee-
able future. The Company intends to retain earnings, if any, to develop and expand its business. In addition, the
terms of its credit facility and the Series B preferred stock restrict its ability to pay cash dividends on the com-
mon stock. The Company also expects the terms of agreements governing any future indebtedness to restrict
its ability to pay cash dividends.

Common Stock Purchase Warrants

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had outstanding warrants in connection with the issuance of the
Series A and the financing arrangements disclosed in Note 6 to purchase an aggregate of 515,489 shares of
common stock at exercise prices ranging from $4.50 to $7.87 with exercise periods extending through March
2009. The values of the warrants range from $1.96 to $4.76 and were determined using a Black-Scholes pricing
methodology. Significant assumptions include an interest rate of 5.21%, an expected volatility of 50% and an
expected life of the warrants of 2.5 to 3 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan (the “ESPP"} which enables participating employees to
purchase Company shares at 85% of the lower of the market prices prevailing on two valuation dates as
defined in the ESPP. Individuals can contribute up to 5% of their base salary. The Company made no contribu-
tions to the ESPP during the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000, and
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000. Set forth below is a summary of shares of common stock purchased
under the ESPP.
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Date Shares Purchased Purchase Price

July 2007 87,632 $257
February 2001 44,438 $3.98
July 2000 5,689 $23.80
February 2000 10,533 $10.38
July 1999 14,779 $5.03
February 1999 11,945 $4.46

Stock Option Plans

Under the terms of its 1993 incentive Stock Option Plan, 1996 Stock Option Plan, 1998 Incentive Plan and
2000 Fiexible Stock Plan, (collectively, the “Plans”), the Company may grant qualified and non-qualified incen-
tive stock options for the purchase of common stock to all employees and, except for the 1993 Stock Option
Plan and 2000 Flexible Stock Plan, to members of the Board of Directors. The Plans generally provide that the
option price will be fixed by a committee of the Board of Directors but for qualified incentive stock options will
not be less than 100% (110% for 10% stockholders) of the fair market value per share on the date of grant.
Non-qualified options are granted at no less than 85% (110% for 10% stockholders) of the fair market value
per share on the date of grant. The 2000 Flexible Stock Plan also provides for benefits in the form of stock
appreciation rights, performance shares, cash awards and other common stock based awards. The stock appre-
ciation rights represent the fair market value per share on the date of grant. The performance shares are equal
to the fair market value of the stock on the date all the restrictions are satisfied. No options have a term of
more than ten years and options to 10% stockholders may not have a term of more than five years.

In the event of termination of employment, other than by reason of death, disability or with the written consent of
the Company, all options granted to employees are terminated. Vesting is determined by the Board of Directors.

Under the terms of the 1999 Equity Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors, at each annual meeting at
which a non-employee director is reelected or is continuing as a director, he or she will be granted a five-year,
non-discretionary, option to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise price equal to 100% of
the fair market value of the common stock on the day before the date of the grant. The options are exercisable
on the grant date. In addition to the foregoing options, the plan administrator also has the authority to award
options to eligible directors in amounts and on terms as it determines. These options are referred to as discre-
tionary options. The exercise price of discretionary options will be set by the administrator and will become
exercisable and expire as the administrator determines, but no options will expire later than 10 years from the
date of grant. If a director dies, or otherwise ceases to be a director, all options, including those issued under
the 1993, 1996, 1998, 1999 and 2000 Plans, not then exercisable will immediately terminate, unless the board
of directors otherwise determines. Any exercisable options will remain exercisable for a period of one year fol-
lowing death or three months following other termination of the individual's status as a director, but in no event
beyond the fifth anniversary of the date of grant in the case of non-discretionary options and beyond the tenth
anniversary of the date of the grant in the case of discreticnary options. Upon a merger or consolidation, which
results in a 50% change in ownership, a transfer of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or a dissolu-
tion or liguidation of the Company, all options, including the 1993, 1996, 1998, 1999 and 2000 plans, not then
exercisable will become exercisable and all unexercised options will terminate upon the consummation of the
transaction. However, in lieu of termination, the board of directors may cause the acquiring or surviving corpora-
tion to assume all options outstanding under the plan or provide replacement options on substantially the same
terms, with any necessary adjustments.

Stock Based Compensation

Pro forma information regarding net loss and net loss per common share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has
been determined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options granted under the Plans and
shares issued pursuant to the ESPP under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123. The fair value for these
options and shares issued pursuant to the ESPP was estimated at the dates of grant using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Optiens ESPP
December 31, March 31, December 31, March 31,
2801 2080 2000 280 2000 2000
Expected life tyears) ..o 4.00 3.73 3.69 0.50 0.50 0.50
Interest rate 5.73% 5.75% 6.12% 5.56% 5.86% 6.08%
Volatility ....... 95.11% 93.25% 84.12% 105.60% 136.54% 82.73%
Dividend yield ... 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumpticns including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its
employee stock options.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the expense related to estimated fair value of the options is recognized
over the options’ vesting period. The Company's pro forma net loss and loss per common share, which has
been adjusted to reflect the March 17, 2000, three-for-two stock split, are as follows:

December 31, December 31, March 31,

2001 2000 2000

Pro forma net loss attributable to Common shareholders ..............c..ocoe. $(155,463,241)V $(91,918,300) $(66,276,203)
Pro forma net loss per common share (Basic and diluted) .. $ {5.78) $ (3.50) $ (3.26)

The effects on the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000, and the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2000, pro forma net loss and loss per common share of expensing the estimated fair
value of stock options and shares issued pursuant to the ESPP are not necessarily representative of the effects
on reporting the results of cperations for future years as the periods presented only include the effects of
option grants under the Company’s plans since 1997.

A summary of the Company's stock option activity, and related information for the nine months ended
December 31, 2000, and the fiscal years ended March 31, 1999 and 1998, which has been adjusted to reflect
the March 17, 2000, three-for-two stock split, follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 20038 Warch 31, 2030

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Bptions Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of year......... 6,352,005 $9.97 5,906,373 $8.91 5,423,714 $4.70

Options granted .. 2,818,148 5.47 1,292,750 16.01 2,137,569 15.08

Options terminated ... (772,093) 12.88 (221,100) 33.60 (411,950) 4.87

Options exercised...........cocoverierivenno (418,062) 4.51 (626,018) 4.96 (1,242,960) 3.37

Qutstanding at end of year ................. 7,972,998 $8.42 6,352,005 $9.97 5,906,373 $8.91
Exercisabie at end of year.................... 3,546,327 2,288,752 1,630,865

Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the year................c....... $3.81 $10.35 $8.87
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The following table presents weighted-average price and life information about significant option groups out-
standing at December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Contractua! Average Average
Exercise Prices Outstanding Lite-Years Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$0.00-535 i e 2,376,961 38 $4.45 1,833,398 $4.39
5.35-10.70 oo 3,686,616 8.3 6.76 888,600 7.85
10.70-16.05 ... 1,216,322 3.1 11.85 579,334 11.48
16.05-21.40 442,200 4.6 18.32 94,065 18.11
21.40-26.75 196,650 4.0 24,24 127,080 24.07
26.75-32.10Q ... - 71,749 4.5 28.38 8,850 28.49
3210-3745 . 49,000 43 34.93 8,300 34.91
37.45-42.80 5,500 4.2 38.90 1,100 38.90
42.80-48.15 ... 21,500 5.7 46.22 4,30 46.22
48.15-63.50 ... 6,500 5.4 53.38 1,300 53.38

7,972,998 3,546,327

10. BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan {the “401{k) Plan”)

The Company maintains a defined contribution plan (the “401(k) Plan”} which covers all employees who meet
certain eligibility requirements and complies with Section 401(k} of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC").
Participants may make contributions to the 401(k) Pian up to 15% of their compensation, as defined under the
terms of the 401(k) Plan, up to the maximum established by the IRC.

The Company may make a matching contribution of an amount to be determined by the Board of Directors, but
subject to a maximum of 6% of compensation contributed by each participant. Company contributions vest rat-
ably over three years. Company contributions to the 401(k) Plan were $963,302, $527,724 and $486,434 in the

year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000, and the fiscal year ended March

31, 2000, respectively.

71. LOSS PER SHARE
Loss per common share has been calculated as follows:
December 31, March 31,

2001 2000 2070
Numerator:
Loss before extraordinary item and cumulative
effect of change in accounting PriNCIPIE ..o, $(124,172,932) $(69,326,130) $(57,073,087)
Extraordinary item-early extinguishment of debt ..., - - (2,430,456}
Loss before cumulative effect of ..o
change in accounting principle . {124,172,932) (69,326,130) {59,503,543)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .........c...cocooiienn - (2,878,949) -
INET HOSS c vttt ettt (124,172 832) (72,205,079} (59,503,543)
Less preferred stock dividends and accretion to
redemption value of preferred StOCK .. ... (19,563,089} (11,517,000} (1,609,351)
Equals: numerator for Basic and Diluted loss per common share ........ $(143,736,021) $(83,722,079) $(61,112,894)
Benominator:
Denominator for Basic and Diluted loss
per common share-weighted average shares............ccccev oo, 26,903,618 26,249,173 20,320,626
Basic and diluted loss per common Share ..., $ (56.34) $ (319 $ (3.01)
Basic and diluted loss per common share -
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.........co.coovovieen, $ - $ 011 $ -
Basic and diluted loss per common share -
EXITAOTAINANY ITEIM ... ittt ettt $ - 3 - $ (0.12)
Basic and diluted loss per common share — before extraordinary item
and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle...................... 3 (5.34) $ (3.08) $ (2.89)
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12. COMIPREHENSIVE LOSS

The Company reports comprenhensive loss as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income,” (FAS 130). FAS 130 requires that changes in fair value of the
Company’s derivative instruments-designated as cash flow hedges, as well as other certain changes in stock-
holders’ equity, be included in comprehensive loss. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the nine months
ended December 31, 2000, and the year ended March 31, 2000, comprehensive loss was $(127,053,356),
$(72,205,079) and $(59,503,543) respectively, as follows:

Year ended Nine Months Year ended
December 31, ended Dacember WMarch 31,
2001 31, 2000 2033
Comprehensive loss:
NEBEIOSS 1otttk ettt e et ${124,172,932) $(72,205,079) $(59,603,543)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... (716,504} - -
Additions to comprehensive loss for changes in fair value of :
cash flow hedges (1,948,2086) - -
Reclassification of gain from comprehensive loss line as offset to
interest expense for ineffective partion
and time value of cash flow hedges ..., (220,714) - -

COMPrERBNSIVE [0SS 1ottt it e et ee eresas e aen e r $(127,059,356) $(72,205,079) $(59,503,543)

13. INCOME TAXES

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2001 2030
Deferred tax assets:
Bad debt @lOWENCE .....ov it e $ 2,801,000 $ 1,823,000
Accruals and allowances, other - 4,420,000 1,965,000
Stock option expense 41,000 -
Net operating 10Ss CarryfOrWard...........c.ooiioieiiiiiii e 105,607,000 71,614,000
DORIECIATION ..ottt eet ettt ettt 13,873,000 2,608,000
Total EfrTET 1aX @SSBT i ittt et e et e e 126,742,000 77,908,000
Deferred tax lability:
OTNBE BXDENSES .. v vttt et et e e e (220,000) (117,000)
Total deferred 1ax Hability ..o {220,000) {117,000}
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ... 126,522,000 77,791,000
T 0N B OV AN L e e e s (126,622,000 (77,781,000}
NET JEFEITEA 18X @SSET ... ittt ittt et et $ - $ -

Management has provided a full valuation allowance against deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty that the
Company will realize these assets. The Company believes that, based upon a number of factors, the availeble
objective evidence creates sufficient uncertainty regarding the realization of the deferred tax assets such that a
full valuation allowance has been recorded. The Company will continue to assess the realization of the deferred
tax assets based on actual and forecasted operating results. At December 31, 2007, the Company had federal
and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $260,800,000 which may be used to reduce future
income tax liabilities, and expire ratably through 2020. Changes in the Company’s ownership will subject the
net operating loss carryforwards to limitations pursuant to Sections 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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The income tax expense is different from that which would be obtained by applying the enacted statutory fed-
eral income tax rate to loss before income taxes. The items causing this difference are as follows:

December 31, December 31, March 31,

2081 2000 " 2080

Tax (benefit) at U.S. statutory rate ..o $ (42,219,000} $ (24,550,000) $(20,231,000)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . (8,071,000 (4,693,000) (3,867,000}
Unbenefitted losses and other...........ooiieiiiiii e 50,290,000 29,243,000 24,098,000
$ - $ - 3 -

14, QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

A summary of operating results and net loss per share for the guarterly periods in the year ended December
31, 2001, the nine months ended December 31, 2000 (restated for SAB 101), and the fiscal year ended March
31, 2000, is set forth below:

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total

Year ended Decembery 31, 2001

REeVENUES ..o $67,621,144 $ 74,512,308 $ 78,166,156 $ 79,138,873 $299,438,481
Cost of telecommunications

revenues (excluding depreciation

and amortization) ..........cccovvereciiceiiiennn. 55,344,185 59,852,566 61,989,987 63,332,161 240,518,899
NETIOSS 1ovviei it (28,948,653) (27,613,754} {30,226,603) (37,383,922) (124,172,932)
Net loss per share -

Basic and diluted.......ocoooooviiie (1.26) (1.21) (1.30) (1.57) (5.34)

Quarter Ended
June 30, September 33,
2000 2000 December 31,
as restated as restated 2030 Total

Nine months ended December 31, 2600

Total revenuUes. ... $51,052,832 $56,993,993 $62,305,870 $170,352,695
Cost of telecommunications

revenues (excluding depreciation

and amortization) ... 39,178,693 44,386,041 49,631,465 133,196,099
Loss before

cumulative effect ..., (18,176,697) (21,901,440) (29,247,993) (69,326,130)
NELIOSS oottt (21,055,646) (21,901,440} (29,247,993) (72,205,079)
Loss per common share

- before cumulative effect.................... 0.79) (1.01) (1.28) (3.08)
Net loss per common share ................... {(0.90) (1.01) (1.28) (3.19)

Quarter Ended A
June 30 September 30 December 31 WMarch 31 Total

Year ended March 31, 2030

Total revenues........cocoeee i $31,0486,851 $ 35,109,155 $ 40,369,021 $ 46,575,907 $153,100,934
Cost of telecommunications

revenues (excluding depreciation

and amortization). ........ceeivctevieioeiiiins 26,089,184 27,398,259 30,409,039 35,689,066 119,585,548
Loss before extraordinary item............... (15,118,813) (12,293,504} (14,2186,531) (15,444,239} (57,073,087)
NELIOSS oot (15,118,813) {12,293,504) (14,216,531) {17,874,695) (59,503,543)
Loss per common share

before extraordinary item ... (.99 (.671) (.67) (.69) (2.89)
Net ioss per share —

Basic and diluted ... (.99) (61) (.87} (.80) (3.01}
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC.

Col. A Col. B Col.C Col. D Col.E
Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions(a) Period
Year ended
December 31, 2001;
Allowance for doubtful
BCCOUNTS ...ien et s $4,501,672 $4,123,921 - $1,709,995 $6,915,598
Mine months ended
December 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtful :
BCCOUNES oviiiiiie e e . $2,000,000 $2,950,521 - $ 448,849 $4,501,672
Year ended Rarch 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful
ACCOUNES . vt e $1,717,000 $1,528,564 - $1,245,564 $2,000,000

(a) Bad debts written off, net of collections.

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commissicn are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore have

been omitted.
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EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 33-44337, 333-
17613, 333-68767, 333-93735, 333-44002, and 333-68208) of CTC Communications Group, Inc. of our report
dated February 15, 2002, except for Note 6 and the last paragraph of Note 7, as to which the date is March 6,
2002, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of CTC Communications Group, Inc.
included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2001,

Gt & LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 27, 2002
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EXHIBIT 39

RISK FACTORS

From time to time we have, and may in the future make, forward-looking statements, based on our then-cur-
rent expectations, including statements made in Securities and Exchange Commission filings, in press releases
and oral statements. These forward-looking statements are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties,
and actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward- looking statements for
a variety of reasons. These reasons include, but are not limited to, factors outlined below. We do not undertake
to update or revise our forward-looking statements publicly even if experience or future changes make it clear
that any projected results expressed or implied therein will not be realized.

THE DECLINE IN THE NATIONAL ECONOCMY AND THE EFFECT OF RECENT TERRORIST ATTACKS MAY
NEGATIVELY AFFECT OUR OPERATIONS

The continued decline in our national economy and the effect of the September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks in
New York City and Washington D.C. could have an adverse effect on our revenues, results of operations, and
financial condition. At the time of the attacks, the demand by businesses for communications services had
been experiencing weakness. Economic and political uncertainly resulting from general economic conditions
and these attacks could result in further declines. We do not know what effect the government’s attempts to
bolster the economy, or effects of the war on terrorism, could have on our business, revenues, or results of
operations. {f businesses decide to cut back, defer or cancel purchases of new communications services, our
revenues could be adversely affected, which could have an adverse effect on our results or operations and
could have an adverse effect on our financial condition.

BECAUSE OUR REVENUES PRIOR TO JANUARY 1998 RESULTED FROM A BUSINESS STRATEGY WE ARE
NO LONGER PURSUING, YOU MAY HAVE DIFFICULTY EVALUATING US.

We began offering local services under our own brand name in January 1998 and began providing network
services to customers since September 1999. As a result, we can only provide limited historical operating and
financial information about our current business strategy for you to evaluate.

IF WE DO NOT SUCCESSFULLY EXECUTE OUR NEW BUSINESS STRATEGY, WE MAY BE UNABLE TO
COMPETE EFFECTIVELY.

Our business strategy is complex and requires that we successfuily complete many tasks, a number of which

we must complete simultaneously. If we are unable to effectively implement or coordinate the implementation
of these multiple tasks, we may be unable to compete effectively in our markets and our financial results may

suffer.

OUR INCURRENCE OF NEGATIVE CASH FLOWS AND OPERATING LOSSES DURING THE NEXT SEVERAL
YEARS MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

During recent periods we have experienced substantial net losses, operating losses and negative cash flow.
Our expenses have increased significantly, and we expect our expenses to continue to increase as we deploy
our network and implement our business plan. Accordingly, we expect to incur significant operating losses, net
losses and negative cash flow during the next year, which may adversely affect the price of our common stock.

IF OUR NETWORK DOES NOT FUNCTION PROPERLY, WE WILL BE UNABLE TO PROVIDE THE TELECOM-
MUNICATIONS SERVICES ON WHICH OUR FUTURE PERFORMANCE WILL IN LARGE PART DEPEND.

Because the design of our network has not been widely deployed, we cannot assure you that our network will
provide the functionality that we expect. We also cannot be sure that we will be able to incorporate local dial
tone capabilities into our network because this technology has not been widely implemented. Without this
capability we will not be able to provide on our network all of our target customers’ fixed line telecommunica-
tions services.

IF WE DO NOT OBTAIN INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENTS WITH OTHER CARRIERS, WE WILL BE UNABLE
TO PROVIDE ENHANCED SERVICES ON OUR NETWORK.

Negotiation of interconnection agreements with incumbent loca!l exchange carriers, or ILECs, can take consider-
able time, effort and expense, and these agreements are subject to federal, state and local regulation. We may
not be able to effectively negotiate the necessary interconnection agreements. Without these interconnection
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agreements, we will be unable to provide enhanced connectivity to our network and local dia! tone services and
to achieve the financial results we expect.

BECAUSE OF OUR LIMITED EXPERIENCE, WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO PROPERLY OR TIMELY DEPLOY,
OPERATE AND MAINTAIN OUR NETWORK, WHICH COULD MATERIALLY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR
FINANCIAL RESULTS.

The failure of our network equipment and fiber to operate as anticipated or the inability of equipment suppliers
to timely supply such equipment could materially and adversely affect our financial results.

Because we have limited experience operating and maintaining telecommunications networks, we may not be
able to deploy our network properly or do so within the time frame we expect. In addition, we may

encounter unanticipated difficulties in operating and maintaining our network. if network implementation does
not occur in a timely and effective manner, our financial results could be adversely affected.

OUR HIGH LEVERAGE CREATES FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RISK THAT COULD LIMIT THE GROWTH OF
OUR BUSINESS.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately $321.7 miflion
of total indebtedness outstanding. We have incurred substantial debt financing to fund our business plan. Our
high leverage could have important consequences to us, including,

o limiting our ability to obtain necessary financing for future working capital, capital expenditures, debt service,
or refinancing requirements or other purposes;

o limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business;
o placing us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with less leverage;
o increasing our vulnerability in the event of a downturn in our business or the economy generzally;

> requiring that we use a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations for debt service and not for
other purposes.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO OBTAIN THE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL WE WILL REQUIRE TO FUND OUR OPERA-
TIONS AND FINANCE OUR GROWTH ON ACCEPTABLE TERMS OR AT ALL, WHICH COULD CAUSE US TO
DELAY OR ABANDON OUR DEVELOPMENT AND EXPANSION PLANS.

We will need significant additional capital 10 expand our business plan. We cannot assure you that capital will be ;
available to us when we need it or at all. If we are unable to obtain capital when we need it, we may delay or
abandon our expansion plans. That could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

OUR MARKET IS HIGHLY COMPETITIVE, AND WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO COMPETE EFFECTIVELY,
ESPECIALLY AGAINST ESTABLISHED COMPETITORS WITH GREATER FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND MORE
EXPERIENCE.

We operate in a highly competitive environment. We have no significant market share in any market in which
we operate. We will face substantial and growing competition from a variety of data transport, data networking,
telephony service and integrated telecommunications service providers. We also expect that the incumbent
local exchange carriers ultimately will be able to provide the range of services we currently offer. Many of our
competitors are larger and better capitalized than we are, are incumbent providers with long-standing customer
relationships, and have greater name recognition. We may not be able to compete effectively against our com-
petitors.

OUR INFORMATION SYSTEMS MAY NOT PRODUCE ACCURATE AND PROMPT BILLS WHICH COULD
CAUSE A LOSS OR DELAY IN THE COLLECTION OF REVENUE AND COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR
RELATIONS WITH OUR CUSTOMERS.

We depend on our information systems to bill our customers accurately and promptly. Because of the deploy-
ment of our network and our expansion plans, we are continuing to upgrade our information systems. Qur failure
to identify all of our information and processing needs or to adequately upgrade our information systems could
delay our collection efforts, cause us to lose revenue and adversely affect our relations with our customers.
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WE MAY NOT RECEIVE TIMELY AND ACCURATE CALL DATA RECORDS FROM OUR SUPPLIERS WHICH
COULD CAUSE A LOSS OR DELAY IN THE COLLECTION OF REVENUE AND COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT
OUR RELATIONS WITH OUR SUPPLIERS.

Our billing and collection activities are dependent upon our suppliers providing us with accurate call data
records. If we do not receive accurate call data records in a timely manner, our collection efforts could suffer
and we could lose revenue. In addition, we pay our suppliers according to our calculation of the charges based
upon invoices and computer tape records provided by these suppliers. Disputes may arise between us and our
suppliers because these records may not always reflect current rates and volumes. If we do not pay disputed
amounts, a supplier may consider us to be in arrears in our payments until the amount in dispute is resolved,
which could adversely affect our relations with our suppliers.

WE DEPEND ON THE NETWORKS AND SERVICES OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS TO SERVE OUR
CUSTOMERS AND OUR RELATIONSHIPS WITH OUR CUSTOMERS COULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY
FAILURES IN THOSE NETWORKS AND SERVICES.

We depend on other carriers for the switching and transmission of our customer traffic. After we complete
deploying our network, we will still rely to some extent on others for switching and transmission of customer
traffic. We cannot be sure that any third party switching or transmission facilities will be available when needed
or on acceptable terms.

Although we can exercise direct control of the customer care and support we provide, most of the services we
currently offer are provided by others. The availability of these services are subject to work stoppages, lack of
available facilities, physical damage, power loss, capacity limitations, software defects, breaches of security and
other factors which may cause interruptions in service or reduced capacity for our customers. These problems,
although not within our control, could adversely affect customer confidence and damage our relationships with
our customers.

INCREASES IN CUSTOMER ATTRITION RATES COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR OPERATING RESULTS.

- Our customers may not continue to purchase local, long distance, data or other services from us. Because we

have been selling voice and data telecommunications under our own brand name for a short time, our cus-
tomer attrition rate is difficult to evaluate. We could lose customers as a result of national advertising cam-
paigns, telemarketing programs and customer incentives provided by major competitors as well as for other
reasons not in our control as well as a result of our own performance. Increases in customer attrition rates
could have a material adverse effect on our results of

operations.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO EFFECTIVELY MANAGE OUR GROWTH, WHICH COULD MATERIALLY ADVERSELY
AFFECT ALL ASPECTS OF OUR BUSINESS.

We are pursuing a business plan that will result in rapid growth and expansion of our operations if we are suc-
cessful. This rapid growth would place significant additional demands upon our current management and other
resources. Our success will depend on our ability to manage our growth. To accomplish this we wili have to
train, motivate and manage an increasing number of employees. Our failure to manage growth effectively could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO RETAIN OR REPLACE OUR SENIOR MANAGEMENT QR HIRE AND RETAIN OTHER
HIGHLY SKILLED PERSONNEL UPON WHICH OUR SUCCESS WILL DEPEND.

We believe that our continued success will depend upon the abilities and continued efforts of our manage-
ment, particularly members of our senior management team. The loss of the services of any of these individu-
als could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Our suc-
cess will also depend upon our ability to identify, hire and retain additiona! highly skilled sales, service and tech-
nical personnel. Demand for qualified personnel with telecommunications experience is high and competition
for their services is intense. If we cannot attract and retain the additional employees we need, we will be
unable to successfully implement our business strategy.

CHANGES TO THE REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO OUR BUSINESS COULD INCREASE OUR COSTS AND
LIMIT OUR OPERATIONS.
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We are subject to federal, state, and local regulation of our local, long distance, and data services. The outcome
of the various administrative proceedings at the federal and state level and litigation in federal and state courts
relating to this regulation as well as federal and state legislation may increase our costs, increase competition
and limit our operations.

RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGES IN THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY COULD RENDER

OUR SERVICES OR NETWORK OBSOLETE FASTER THAN WE EXPECT OR REQUIRE US TO SPEND
MORE THAN WE CURRENTLY ANTICIPATE.

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant changes in technology. Any changes could
render our services or network obsolete, require us to spend more than we anticipate or have a material
adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition. Advances in technology could also lead to more
entities becoming our direct competitors. Because of this rapid change, our long-term success will increasingly
depend on our ability to offer advanced services and to anticipate or adapt to these changes, such as evolving
industry standards. We cannot be sure that:

o we will be able to offer the services our customers require;

o our services will not be economically or technically outmoded by current or future competitive technologies;

< our network or our information systems will not become obsolete;

o we will have sufficient resources to develop or acquire new technologies or introduce new services that we
need to effectively compete; or

= our cost of providing service will decline as rapidly as the costs of our competitors.

WE MAY PURSUE ACQUISITIONS WHICH COULD DISRUPT OUR BUSINESS AND MAY NOT YIELD THE
BENEFITS WE EXPECT.

We may pursue strategic acquisitions as we expand. Acquisitions may disrupt our business because we may:
> experience difficulties integrating acquired operations and personnel into our operations;

o divert resources and management time;

o be unable to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies

o enter markets or businesses in which we have little or nc experience; and find that the acquired business

does not perform as we expected,

OUR EXISTING PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTCORS CONTROL A
SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF OUR VOTING SHARES AND WILL BE ABLE TO SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCE
ANY MATTER REQUIRING SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL.

Our officers and directors and parties related to them now control approximately 29.7% of the voting power of
our outstanding capital stock. Robert J. Fabbricatore, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, controls
approximately 9.8% of our voting power. Therefore, the officers and directors are able to significantly influence
any matter requiring shareholder approval.

FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR OPERATING RESULTS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE PRICE OF OUR
COMMON STOCK.

Our annual and quarterly revenue and results could fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, including:
o variations in the rate of timing of customer orders,
e variations in our provisioning of new customer services,

o the speed at which we expand our network and market presence,
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> the rate at which customers cancel services, or churn,

o costs of third party services purchased by us, and

o competitive factors, including pricing and demand for competing services.

Also, our revenue and results may not meet the expectations of securities analysts and our stockholders. As a
result of fluctuations or a failure to meet expectations, the price of our common stock could be materially
adversely affected.

OUR STOCK PRICE IS LIKELY TO BE VOLATILE.

The trading price of our common stock is likely to be volatile. The stock market in general, and the market for
technology and telecommunications companies in particular, has experienced extreme volatility. This volatility
has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. Other factors that could cause

the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially include:

o announcements of developments related to our business, or that of our competitors, our industry group or
our customers;

= fluctuations in our results of operations;
o hiring or departure of key personnel;

< a shortfall in our results compared to analysts’ expectations and changes in analysts’ recommendations or
projections;

> sales of substantial amounts of our equity securities into the marketplace;
o regulatory developments affecting the telecommunications industry or data services; and

o general conditions in the telecommunications industry or the economy as a whole.
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